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Strategic Report

Operating and Financial R_e_\_liew_.

OBJECTIVE AND STRATEGY - |

The members present their report and the auc.l.it_.ed. fin_a'r._rolal.statemehts fo:r.'the.\r_eareh‘deo 31 }_uiy éqtst ::
Legal status. - | | | | B L | |

The Corporation was establlshed under the Further and Higher . Educatron Act 1992 for the purpose of

conducting Birmingham Metropolltan CoElege The College is an exempt charlty for the purposes of the_ : _

' Char|t|es Act 2011

Mission : - \ :
The College’s mission, as approved by its members is ‘Inspiring Futures .Realising Dreams.’ The College WEEE D
achieve its ‘mission by focussmg onlts strateglc gans whrch focus on four areas and are set out as follows '

s TJo be recognrsed as the leadrng Co!!ege of the region

s Todeliver outstanding education and employment outcomes for ar’l
s 7o beagreat placeto work

o Tobe ﬁnancraﬁy strong and invest in Ieamr'ng

In order to achieve these strategrc goa]s the College wrli burld on |ts core values The College values, whlch o
define how we operate are: . S . .

. StudentS' Students are at the heart of everything we do : -

* BMet: BMet is innovative, inclusive and Inspiring . : : .

e Improve: We are determined to improve our teaching, support and care for aEI students S :

»  Skills: We are passionate about workmg W|th employers to meet the:r skl!is needs and support strong,
. sustainable economic growth . = : v .

s With Great People We attract support and deve!op people who are outstand:ng at what they do _ -

The College is |mplementlng a cultural change programrne Bwldmg a Better BMet whzch wﬂl support and :
advance the achrevement of |ts strateglc goals : - :

Resources

The Coliege has various re_sources'that it can deploy in pursuit of its strategic objectives. B
The College employs 952 people (expressed as full-time equlva__lents), of_ whom 538 are teachihg staff. . - R
The College enrolled approkimately 20,000 students. The college’s student population includes 6,039 16-t0-18-

year-old students and 12,777 aduit learners, including 859 apprentices and 500 higher education students,

The College has £24.298 million of net assets (including £30. 400 million pension liability) and long-term debt of
- £16.726 million. Tangible resources comprise of 12 sites throughout Blrmlngham and The Black Country There
are two sites and one surplus building that the College has for sale. - : :
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Stakeholders

The Coilege has many stakeholders including:
- _|ts current future and past students
_: | .|ts staff and their trade UI’IEOI'IS
- the employers rt works w1th
. _. | the professronaE organlsatron |n the sectors where it works §
- :_1ts partner schools and umversrtles, the wuder coliege communlty, :
Lo :.rts local borough councrl comblned authorlty and Local Enterprlse Partnership

the ESFA and other fundlng bodres

DEVELOPMEt\tT.AND_PERFOR_M_ANCE SR
Financial Resutts

The College generated a deficit in the year of £4 347k (2016/17 a defrut of £2 435k), with a total
comprehensive income of £4,414k {2016/17 ‘a surplus of £9,921k)..In 2017/18 the college continued to
monitor against its financial recovery plan with an aim to return to good financial health. The College’s EBITDA
(earnings before mterest tax deprecratron and amortrsatron) was a £1, 608k defrcrt whlch was favourable to .
the prior year ' : - : : : S

. Income reduced by £2, 750k {4. 55%), drrven mam!y by a reductron in 16- 19 students Teachlng staff costs were _ "
adjusted to refEect thrs hut increases |n pensron costs |mpacted adversely on- pay costs. : -

Comprehenswe mcome grew in the year by £4 414k resultlng in accumulated reseryes of £24 299k (2016/17 B
£19,886k). - The reason forthe srgnrf:cant increase in reserves is due to _positive movements on the pension -

scheme valuatlon Eeadlng to a decrease in pensron deflcrt and the net proflt on the sa]e of the CEAC buﬁdlng

The College has cash baEances of£1 327k (2016/17 £2 420k) The decrease tn cash balances |ncludes payments i

made to reduce the outstand:ng ESFA Ioan amount B .

Tangible fixed asset addrtrons durlng the year amounted to £1 418k Thrs is spht between Iand and buﬂdmgs of
£329k, assets under construction of £90k and equipment of £999k.. The cellege continues to adopt a very tight

Capital Expenditure pelicy whilst ESFA loan repayments are required in line with the recovery plan. As the .
future financial performance of the college improves more funds ‘will be able to be set aside for «capital.

|mprovements but is expected to contlnue to track materially under depreCIatlon Ievels for the next 3- 4 years S

Developments

i

The College has invested in |mprovements to the IT lnfrastructure and the development of anew A Eevei
centre on the Sutton CoalfieEd campus _ : : : o :

Reserves .
The College has accumulated reserves of £24,299 and cash and short term investment balances of £1,327k.
The College long term aim is to accumulate reserves and cash balances in order to create a contingency fund.

r

Sources of income

The College has significant reliance on the education sector funding bodies for its pri’ncipal funding source,
largely from recurrent grants. In 2017/18 the funding bodies provided 90% of the total income {16/17 — 89%).
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FUTURE PROSPECTS

Developments .

The College is currently revieuring its strategic plan to determine the strategic direction for the College over .
the next five year penod This is bemg done in partnershlp wtth key stakeholders |ncludmg sector speaallsts _
and funding bodles : R : S - :

A full institutlonal revlew is underway and the results of that review will inform'the strategic, curriculum and

financial plans for the coliege from 2019 to 2025 ngh quahty prowsmn prowded frorn a sound finanmal base_ L

wulE be key elements of the strategy
Financial he_a[t_h '- =

Improving the College’s financial health is a key priarity. ‘The College’s recoyery_pla_n.has heen incorporated
into the College’s Operating Plan-which ensures that all areas of the College continue to develop for the

benefit of its students. -The College’s financial health score using the ESFA assessment |s unsatlsfactory due o -

to the level of support fundmg that the College has in place _? R

Fmancra_l plan - '

The College governors approved a three year fi'nancla! plan in July 2018 which set out objectives fo_r the_per_iocl
to 2020. This plan.will be revised in line with the institutional review to ensure the financial plan underpins the

new strategic plan once it has been formulated This w1|l be tested wrth extemal stakeholders before being
approved by the Governmg body ' - - : : .

Treasury polrcres and objectwes - REE

Treasury Management is the management of the Coliege 5 cash flows its bankmg, money market and capltal

market transactions; the effective control of the. rlsks assoaated wrth those actnntres and the pursmt of L

optrmum performance consrstent wrth those rlsks
The College has a separate treasury management pollcy

Short term borrowrng for temporary revenue purposes is author:sed by the Accountlng Offlcer Such
arrangements are restricted by limits .in the Financial Memorandum wrth the ‘ESFA. All other. borrowrng

requires - the authorisation of ‘the Corporation and comphes wrth the requtrements of the Flnancral_ L

Memorandum of the Educatlon Skills Fundlng Agency

For the financial years to 31 July 2016 and 31 July 2018 the College chcl not meet alE flnancral covenants set by _ -
bankrng mstltutions in relatlon to borrowmg arrangements The breaches of covenants were as foliows : B

. Barclays Bank— debt service cover must not fall below 1 at end of July 2018 this was at 0 o
s Lloyds Bank EBITDA cover must not fall be[ow 2,at end of July 2018 thrs was negatrve

As a result of these breaches of covenant, the Iong term elements of the Ioans wrth the two banks were
reclassified to short term The banks are currently reser\ring their rlghts : :

Cash flows and liquidity .

A net cash outflow of £703k in 2017/18 {2016/17: cash inflow of £1,532), from operating activities has .
weakened the liquidity position of the Coliege. The most significant transaction during the year was the
disposal of the CEAC building, generatlng £9.9m of cash, of which £7m was repard to the ESFA against the
College’s loan. .
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~ Reserves -

The College has no formal Reserves Policy but recognises the importance of reserves in the financial stability of -
‘any organisation, and ensures that there are adequate reserves to support the College’s core activities. As at .
 the balance sheet date the Income and Expenditure reserve stands at £13,782k {2016/17: £9,059Kk). It is the '
Corporation’s intention 1o increase reserves over. the lrfe of the new strateglc plan through the generatlon of -
annual operatlng surpluses o -

Gorng concern

As reflected in these frnancral statements, the College has recorded a defrcrt before other galns and losses of - :

_£8.5m for the year ended 31 July -2018. The College had a substantlal creditor of £7.7m payabie 1o the _' ._ RN
Educatron & Skills Funding Agency at 31 July 2018, of which £6,0m is Exceptronal Flnanctal Support (EFS) ‘Fhe T N

. College has £391k of loans wrth its bankers that fall due within the year to 31 July 2019

-In addlt;on the Corporatron has set a defrcrt budget for 2018/19 as a result of decreases |n Government
- Funding related to falilng 16/18 student numbers, and the adverse impact of enrolment on HE and ALL student o
numbers Thrs continues to have a negatrve effect on the frnanc:al recovery strategy of the College

The College has applied for, and has been granted addlt:onal £FS of £4.3m to be pard in january 2019 and has '

implemented an institutional review to determine the strateglc future of the College. This revrew wrll mclude :
robust frnancnal plans to provrde a sound frnancaa! base for the Coilege movrng forward S '

lt is cons:dered by the Corporatlon that the addrt;onal EFS fundrng and the caprtal recerpts from pEanned asset o

. disposals during 2018/19 wrl! provrde sufflcrent resources to a]low the College to operate dunng thrs perrod of . o B :.':_ ;

strategrc real:gn ment

Based on the above |nd|catrons the Corporation beheves it is appropnate to prepare the flnanual statements '

on a_going concern basis, However, these circumstances represent a. mater;al uncertarnty whlch may cast o

. significant doubt on the College s ability to contrnue as a going concern and therefore to contsnue reallsmg its - S

~ assets and. d:schargmg its liabilities in the normal course of busrness The fmancral statements do not mclude

any adjustments that would resuit from the basrs of preparatron berng |napproprrate

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES .
Risk.__m‘anagement_._"'. - -' L

' The.Coliege has developed strategles for managing r'isk ahd'strlves to embed rlsk management in all that it

does, Risk management processes are designed to protect Its assets, reputatron and frnancral stabrllty The R

governlng body has overall responSIbrllty for risk management and its approach to managlng nsks and mternal o :
controls is explalned in the Statement on Corporate Governance e SRR SR : L

A risk register is marntamed at the College level whrch s revrewed at least annually by the Audlt Commlttee
and more frequently where necessary. The risk register rdentrfles the key risks, the likelihood of those risks -
occurring, their potentlal impact on the College and the actlons belng taken to reduce and mrtlgate the rrsks
Risks are pnorttlsed usrng a consistent scorang system. RS . : ERE

The main rrsk factors affectmg the ColEege are outllned below along W|th the actron taken to msnlmlse them .
Not all the factors are within the Coiiege 5. control Other factors besldes those Irsted below may a]so adversely o
affect the Coilege : : : : _ :

. ', '_The _College do_es not generate _enough' cash to e_ffect‘rve_ly operate L
= - “Quiality of teaching and learning is not improved and learners do not make suffic_ien_t prog_ress. :

These risks a're_mitigated in a number of ways:
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e Development of a Quality Improvement Plan and following the latest Ofsted visit in October 2018 a
] Post Inspection Action Plan. These documents form the basis of improving quality in the College;
* Implementation of a rigorous Quality Assurance process to ensure the quality of teaching and learning
~ improves; and ;

e Monitoring of targets to identify areas of weakness before an issue arises and development of action
plans to manage such weaknesses :

e Improved cash flow forecasting processes and ensure these are fully integrated with income
forecasting process '

* Renegotiation of the ESFA loans and repayment profile to maintain liquidity

e Implementation of new accounting systems and processes to improve controls over spending.

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
The Corporation receives regular reports tracking the key performance indicators for the College as agreed as

part of the Business review process. The final KPI’s for 2017/18 are shown in the table below with appropriate
RAG ratings. These KPI's are monitored throughout the year and inform action planning for the following year:

To be recognised as the I'eaﬂi_n'g‘Ctj]l.ege of the region
1.1 | Attendance : 28%

1.1 Your experience at college 87%
1.1 Induction Survey : 88%
1.1 Big Teaching & Learning Survey ; 90%
1.2 Inspirometer satisfaction survey : “Upward
: trend
1 1.2 Employer Satisfaction 85%
1.2 MBC Brand perception ‘ Upward
trend
To deliver outstanding education and employment outcomes for all
2.1 Students are making good progress during 88%
observations and learning walks ;
2.1 All relevant staff requiring coaching, receive coaching 95%
2.1 16-18 Education and Training achievement rates 82%
2.1 Adult Education and Training achievement rates i 83%
2.1 Apprenticeship Achievement Rates 78%
2.2 Students actively managed on markbook : 95%
2.2 Apprentice starts using ePortfolio J 80%
2.3 Learners achieve or are on track to achieve target 85%

grade or above

To be a great place to work

3.1 | Staff actively developing their performance 95%
3.2 Overall employee engagement ; 3.4
To be financially strong and invest in learning. '

4.1 Conversion of application to offer stage : 60%
4.1 Internal progression & retainment (16-18) 65%
4.1 Internal progression & retainment (adults) 35%
4.2 EFA (Note 1) £30.3m
4.2 SFA £11.5m
4.2 | Apps (Note 2) ‘ £6.1m
4.2 | Other (Note 2) | £14.1m
4.2 Operating budget surplus (deficit) ; £M
4.2 Cashflow £1.2m
4.2 | Total income £62m
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OTHER INFORMATION :
Publrc Beneftt S

" BMet is an exempt charlty under the Part 3 of the Chantres Act 2011 and is regulated by the Secretary of State o
. for Education. The members of the Governmg Body, who are trustees of the chanty, are d;sclosed on pages 13
& 14, In setting and reviewing the College s strategic ObjECtIVES the Governlng Body has had due regard for ..
the Charity Commission’s guldance on public beneflt and partrcularly upon | Its supplementary guidance an the :
advancement of educatlon R . . : s _ . -

In dellvermg 1ts mlssron the College provides identlﬁable public beneﬁts through the advancement of
education to students, mcludrng students wrth high needs. The college provrdes courses. wrthout charge to
young people to those who are unemployed and o adults taklng English and maths course The college L

ad]usts jts courses to meet the needs of local employers and provides trarning to 859 apprentrces The college R

. is committed to provrdang information, advrce and gurdance to the students it enrols and to frndlng surtable
courses for as rnany students as poss;ble regardless of thelr educatlonal background '

Diversity and Inclus:on : RRAREEE

Diversity and Inclus:on (D&I) is plvotal to BlViet s orgamsatlonal culture and Success, We are passronate about =

offering inclusive working and learning environments where everyone is treated with dignity and respect and - - i
"is able to participate, progress and thnve This starts with valuing and celebrating alt of the differences that - RReY

make us unique, :ncluding, but not ltmtted to, ab|l|ty, age, gender pregnancy & matermty, sexual orrentatlon :
race, and rellgion&bellef ' [FRR . _ R '

The Colleges Ec;uahty and DlverSIty PoI|cy, Dtversny and lncluswn Strategy, Annual Equahty Report and i
Equality Objectives outline the organisation’s commrtment and progress towards fuliy lntegratlng D&E mto all -_: S

'aspects of college l|fe These are publlshed on BlVlet s websrte

The College works hard to remove cond:tlons whlch may place people at a disadvantage We pay partlcular ': - L
attention ‘to preventing direct and |nd|rect dlscrrmlnatlon that affects the iegally recogmsed protected o i

: characteristrcs mcludmg drsabllrty

Dlsabtl:ty statement -

BMet strives to fulfll our statutory respons:bllltles towards dasabled people set out in the Equalrty Act 2010 and IR 5 '

the Publlc Sector Equalrty Duty 2011 by

. Providmg an envnronment that is rncluswe and acce55|ble for all stakeholders B = _
. "_Observmg our antlctpatory cfuty to make reasonable adjustments to take steps to meet the needs of
disabled people and remove or minimise the d:sadvantages they may face L : AT

® Responding to individual needs in a tlmely way, where needs have not been antlcrpated

. ‘Considering creative and aglle solutlons to access |ssues in addltlon to structured assessment

frameworks such as Access to Work - e :
. _Havrng due regard to advancing equal:ty by encouragrng dlsabled people 1nto employment and__ :
education and by supporting their progression through the organisation . :

e Ensuring staff and students have approprrate equallty, diVEl’Slt\/ and mclusson awareness to support S

themselves and others '

The Coliege is a DWP 'Dlsabrlaty Confident Employer which reflects our work around proactlvely employmg
and retaining disabled people. This involves actively looking to attract, recrult and retain disabled people by
providing a fully inclusive and access;ble recrurtment process and supportlve envrronments to enable peop[e to .
be their very best. :
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Trade umon facility time .

The Trade Union (Facility Trme Publrcatlon Reqmrements) Regulatlons 2017 require the college to publrsh
mformatlon on facrhty trme arrangements for trade unlon ofﬂaaEs atthe coEIege ' R :

Nu_m_bers_o_f er_nploy_ee_s who_.were _re_Ie\_rant_in _t_ne_ pe_riod FTE_emponee__numb_e_r_ B

0% T

150% g R .. 10

5199% |0

Total_cost of facility time . . S A £33 7k

Total pay brll R T £40491k

Percentage oftotal bl” spent on facrhty trme o _0.08%_,..__

Time spent on pard trade union actrvrtles as a ] 100% __: i
percentage of total pazd facrlrty time. I IR

Payment p'erformance S

The Late Payment of Commercra! Debts (Interest) Act 1998 whlch came mto force on 1 November 1998

requires colleges, in the absence of agreement to the contrary, to make ‘payments to suppllers within 30 daye SRS R

of either the provision of goods or services or the date on which the invoice was received. The target setby
the Treasury for payment to suppliers within 30 days is 95%. During the accountmg penod 1 August 2017 to 31
July 2018, the College paid 16, 5 % of its invoices wrthm 30 days The Coilege mcurred mterest charges of

£27. 4k in respect of Iate payment for thrs perlod D . - S
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DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDITORS

The members who held office at the date of approval of this report confirm that, so far as they are each aware, .
there is no relevant audit information of which the College’s auditors are unaware; and each member has’
taken all the steps that he or she ought to have taken to be aware of any relevant audlt 1nformat|on and to
estabhsh that the College 5 aud:tors are aware of that mformatton . - : SRS

Approved by order _of'the niem_b_ers of th‘e_Cprho_ration on 20 December 2018 and_ s_ign_ec_i_ on.its behalf by:

Mr Steve Hollls : ..; b

Chalrman of the Corporatlon _:.

11
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Statement of Corporate Governance and Internal Control

The following statement is provided to enable readers of the annual report and accounts of the College to
obtain a better understanding of its governance and legal structure. This statement covers the period from 1
August 2017 to 31 July 2018 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and fmanr:tal statements B -

The Colfege endeavours to conduct its busmess

i in accordance W|th the seven’ princ:lpies |dentlfied by the Commlttee ‘on Standards in Puplic. i_lfe
" (selflessness, integrity, objectivity, accountability, openness, honesty and leadership);
ii. in accordance with the guidance to colleges from the Assoc;atlon of Colleges in The Code of Good
- Governance for English Colleges (2015) (“the FE Code”); and - " : : s
dii. having due regard to the UK Corporate Governance Code (“the Code") msofar as itis apphcable to the
_ further educatlon sector e : _ . . .

The College is commE_tt_ed _to exhibiting best practice in all aspects of corporate governance and in’ particular i

the College has reported on.our Corporate Governance arrangements by drawing upon best practice available,

including those aspects of the UK Corporate Governance Code we cons:der to. be relevant to. the further. - o e

educatlon sector and best practlce

In the opinion of the governors, the College complles wrth all the provisions of the Code in so far as they apply
to the Further Education Sector, and it has complied throughout the year ended 31 July 2017, The Corporation
recognises that, as a body entrusted with both public and private funds, it has a particular duty to observe the
highest standards of corporate governance at all times, In carrying out its responsibilities, it takes full account
of, and is substantially compliant with the Code of Good Governance for Englrsh Colleges |ssued by the
Assouatlon of Colleges in March 2015 ' : S :

The College 1s_an exe_mpt _cha_rity_w_i_thin the meaning of Part 3 of the C_harit_ies Act. 2(511._ The Governors, who

are also the Trustees for.the purposes of the Charities Act 2011, confirm that they have had due regard for the =~

Charity Commission’s gutdance on publrc benefrt and that the requn‘ed staternents appear elsewhere in these_ L :
financial statements : : - - L : . : _ o SR

The Corporat:on
The members who served on: the Corporatron durmg the year and up to the date of 5|gnature of thrs report
were as listed in the table below i . . : . T . '

. The table is up to and mcludnng the December 2018 meetmg of the Corporahon

Name . Datecf - [ ExpiryofTerm | Dateof | Statusof =~ . . Committees Served - || Corporation

) Appointment of Office - -~ | Reslgnation Appolntment - o s ' | Attendance
Steve Hollis | 1September 2013 § 31 August 2019 [ .- ° - | Independent : -| Finance Committee ~ . 11 outof 11
“| Governanceand - )
Search/Remuneration
Committee
Veronica 1 August 2010 - | 30 November - o R Independent . | ‘Academic Standards and | 9 outof11
Docherty oo 2018 - : R B S Quaatity Deve!opments 1 B
' ' S : E RN Committee . :

Gavernance and
Search/Remuneration |
| Committee )

Finance Committee

12
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Statement of Corporate Governance and Internal Control (continued) . 5

Name . | Dateof - .| ExpiryofTerm | Dateof " Statusof .. - | Committees Served . [ Corporation .
' Appointment © ] of Office . ° ‘[ Resignation | Appeintment | ¢ : | Attendance
Deborah | 14 September . | .13 September -~ | 15 October Independent '} Audjt Committee . | 4outofd .
£dmonds 2017 0 2021 2018 o LR M RN
Dan - | 14 September <[ 13September -~} - l.. 70| Independent .| Academic Standardsand ‘| ‘10 out of 11 ;
Zastawny . | 2017 ool 2028 oo ] e 5 Quality Development AR R R
. o e . . BN TR : . L R Committee ; .
Keith 15 September - : ' 14 September =3~ - | Independent - - | ‘Academic Standards and | Zoutofll - -] o
Horton - [-2016 . ": . 2020 T i P ouality Development o T e
o § R SIS : S | Committee i ISRt R
“joel Blake : - | -15 Septemnber © -] 14 September |- ] independent - Finance Committee - i 5outofil -
it aone ] 2020 U T L e %
“Michele - -} 20 October 2016 | 19 October . 0] Independent . [ Audit Committee - ol 10 out of 11
Larmour R R 2020 : IR : SEREE R R o
Sonfa - 15 September . - | 31July 2018 | Retired 31 - |:Staff Member -~ | Academic Standards and 7outof?
Crook-take | 2016 . - o ayzo18 | o0 Quality Development ]
' N : R .| Committee =] .
Jane Smith . | 15September . . [*31July 2019 - Dol et Staff Member C Y Audit Committee 010 out of 10
Andrew | 1dune2014 - - | .o Exoffiie Ul | 9outefll
Cleaves oo e s e nemberas R IR
- ' “Princlpal -

Hitary . |20 October 2016 | 19 October. =" . -+ ] independent .” ] Finance Committee .. '] : 10 out 0f 11 -
Smogth- SR PYYY IR | IR e AR
Allen - DI

Amardeep | 15 December. 7| 14 December [ Tk independent [ “Audit Committee s 10 eutofll
Gl -~ ta201e i | 2000 R
Chff Hall .- '] 1May20i8 - - - 30 April 2022 <[ independent 00§ Academic Standards and ;| Soutof6 -
S e s | (and exofficio | Quality Development | D s
|| memberas : | Committee -
|- Principal from 0| 0
Angeta .| 27 Aprii 2018 - |26 April 2022 . .o independent < Academic Standards and | 6 out of 6
Myers U ] R SRR S ] Quality Development | o
Committee "~ "

Simon EETERRNE EFERERN T RS R R RS y A Y IEE SEAERBUREE AT R e
Thompson - | 15 Decémber | 14 December |+ 17+ | Independent "I Audit Committee " * ] 8outof8 -
l2ome o200 SRR AR

SamColes . { 12July2018 . ° "} 3%July2019 .0f 0o o] staff o] Finance Committee -

: : L S S 3outof3

Michael | 12luly2018 | sijulyzo19 1ot Student - Academic Standardsand | 00 :

Nrabugo - [ i e el : Lo L Quality Development | 2 outof 3
' Committee -

Daniel 1 12uly2018 . 31uly2018 | Te 0 T Student o) Academic Standardsand |3 out of3. -
- Millington Con el e e e T Quality Development
. -|-Commitiee 7=

Mohammed :2_0_.1u1y 2017 . 01 31hly2018 .- e 'Stu_d_ent o} Academic Standardsand | Goutof7. -
Albukair e N L e e L Quality Development S
Committee L

Mr Liam Nevin acts as the _C_o'mpany Secretary. ':_ L
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: Birmingham Metropoliton College
Members’ Report and Financial Staternents
For the year ended 31" July 2018

Statement of Corporate Governance and Internal Control (contmued)

It is the Corporatlons respons:bulty to brmg mdependent ;udgement to bear, on ;ssues of strategy, c

performance resources and standards of conduct

The Corporatlon is prowded w:th mformatlon on the overall fnanmal performance of the Co]lege together WJth o
other information such as performance against funding targets, proposed capital expendlture quality matters

and risk management measures. The Corporation meets as a minimum on a termly basis and holds a. number -

of ”keepmg in touch” sessions w;th management between meetlngs to keep mformed of College matters

_The Corporatlon conc!ucts its busmess through a number of commlttees Durlng 2017/18 the foliowmg

. committees weére in place Audit Remuneration, Governance and Search, Finance, & Business Development, . - -
and Academic Standards and Quality Development Full minutes’ of all meetlngs, ‘except those deemedto be.: @ 0

confidential by the Corporatlon are avallable on the Colleges websute at WWw. bmet ac, uk or. from the
.Company Secretary : R S : : _

Birmmgham Metropolltan College
-Jennens. Road BTSN
Birmingham .=
B4 7P5.

The Company Secretary maintains a regxster of financ:a! and personal Jnterests of the governors The regrster s . il

available for mspectron at the. above address

All governors are able to take |ndependent professuonal adwce in furtherance of the:r dutaes at the College 5.

expense and have access to.the. Company Secretary, who is responsrble to the Board for .ensuring that all

applicable procedures and regulations are comphed with. The. appo:ntment evaluat:on and removal of the it L

Company Secretary are matters for the Corporat|on as a whole

Formai agendas papers and reports are supphed to governors |n a timely manner pnor to Board meetmgs_ SR
Br|efmgs are a!so provaded onan. ad hoc basrs : : - : . .

The Corporatlon has a strong and lndependent non- executlve e]ement and no mdlwdual or. group dommates [ERERE RN

its decision making process. The Corporatlon consulers that each of its non-executive members is independent

of management and-free from any business or other relat:onship whlch could mater;ally mterfere with the:i B

exercise of thelr mdependent judgement

There is.a clear dwasron of responslblllty in that the roles of the Charr of the Corporat:on and Accountlng_. S

Officer of the College are separate
APPOin_tments to_ the_ _Corpcira_tion_ R '

Any new appointments to the Corporation are a matter for the consideration of the .Co'rporation' as a whole, -

The Corporation has a Governance -& Search Committee comprising of five members of the Corporation - . B

{including the Principal) whu:h is responsable for the selection and nomination of any new member for the -
Corporation’ s consrderatlon The Corporatlon is respons:bie for ensunng that appropnate trainlng is prowded _
as required. ' s . _ _ S ST o :

Members of the Corporation are appomted for a term of ofﬁce not exceedmg four years, wuth extensnons

aliowung a maximum term of offlce of e|ght years W|th extenswns beyond that being granted only in L

exceptional cases.
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Birmingham Metropolitan College
Members’ Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended 31% July 2018

Statement of Corporate Governance and Internal Control (continued) .

- Corporation performance

The Corporation undertakes ongomg evaluatlon of 1ts own performance and has :dentrfled the followmg areas_
 for improvement: : : SR

. The strengthenmg of the Corporatlon Board to mcIude more high Ievel expenence of teachmg and, )
o _Iearnlng in the FE sector ' : : . - . : :

.. The.s_tre‘ngt_hening of the Finance Committee with _the addition of an experienced accountant. -
. '__The s_trengthening of the College’s financial forecasti_ng_and_budget_ control a_r_rangeme_nts.' L
Remuneratlon Commlttee _- TR

Throughout the year endmg 31 July 2018, the College 5. Remuneratlon Comrrnttee compnsed of four members

of the Corporation. The Committee’s responsibilities are to make recommendations to the Board on the -

remuneration and beneflts of the Accounting Officer and other senjor post holders as appropriate
Details of r_em_uneration for the year ended 31 July 20__18 are_ set_ out in hote 7 to the financial state_m_en_t_s_.

Audit'Committee

The Audit Commlttee comprises of flve members of the Corporanon (whlch exclude the Accountlng Offlcer and SR .

Chairman). The Committee  operates in accordance ‘with its. written terms of reference approved by the
Corporation. . Its purpose is to advise the Corporatton on the adequacy and effectweness of the Coiiege s
system of. mternai control and :ts arrangements for risk management control and governance processes

The Audit Committee meets ona termly basis and provldes a forum for reporting by the College S internal and - B
financial statement auditors, who have :access to the Committee for independent discussion, without the .. " SR
presence of Coliege. management The Comm:ttee also recelves and cons:ders reports from the mam fundmg IR

bodies as they affect the College s business.
The Colleges internal audltors 'review the eystems of lnternal control, “risk mana'g'ement controls and
governance processes in accordance wrth an agreed plan of mput and report thelr fmdmgs to management

“and the Audlt Commlttee

Management is responmble for the mplementatron of agreed recommendatlons and |nternal audlt undertake o '
periodic fol]ow up re\news to ensure such recommendatuons have been lmplemented

The Audit Comm:ttee also adwses the Corporatlon on the appomtment of rnternal and fmancral statements
auditors and their remuneratlon for audit and nen-audlt work as well as report:ng annually to the Corporatlon
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Birmingham Metropolitan College
. Members’ Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 July 2018

Statement of Corporate Governance and Internal Control {continued) -
Internal Control
Scope of responsibility -

The Corporation Is ultimately responsible for the College’s system of internal control and for reviewing its .
" effectiveness. However, such a system is designed to manage rather than.eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can prowde only reasonable and not absoiute assurance agamst material
mlsstatement or Ioss : o
The Corporation' has delegated the 'day-to~day responsibility -to. the 'Prin'cEpal as Accounting Officer, for "

. maintaining a sound system of internal control that supports the achievement of the College’s policies, a|m5
and objectives whilst safeguarding the public funds and assets for which he is personally responSIbIe in

) ‘accordance with the responsibilities assigned to him.in the Financial Memorandum between the College and -.
the ESFA. He is also responseble for reportmg to the Corporation any matenal weaknesses or break—downs in ..

internal contro!
The purpose of the Sy&tem of internal control . :
The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk .

of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute.
assurance of effectiveness. The system of‘internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify -

and prioritise the risks to the achievement of College policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of -

those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively

and economically. The system of internal contro! has been in place in Birmingham Metropolitan CoIEege for o

the year ended 31 JuEy 2018 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and flnanual statements
Capac.rty to handle nsk

The Corporatlon has rewewed the key risks to WhICh the College is exposed together Wlth the operatmg, B

financial and compliance controls that have been |mpiemented to mitigate those rtsks The: Corporatlon is of_" :
the view that there is a formal on-going process for identifying, - evaluat:ng and managing the Coliege's o

significant risks that has been in place for the period ending 31 July 2018 and up to the date uf approval of the
annual report and accounts Th:s process is regularly rewewed by the Corporatlon o : -

The risk and control frqmewark_ _

The system of internal control is based on a framework of regular management |nf0rmat;0n adrhmlstratloh_ G :
procedures mciudmg the segregatlon of dut:es and a system of delegatlon and accountabihty In part:cuiar |t S

includes:

. Comprehenswe budgetmg systems W|th an annual budget whlch is . rewewed and agreed by the_ -
Corporation : : o : '

*  Regular reviews by the Corporatlon of. perlodac and annual fmancna! reports which mdacate financial
performance against forecasts : Lo '

¢ Setting targets to measure financial and other performance '
e Clearly defined capital investinent control guideEineS
e The adoption of formal project management disciplines, where appropriate

The College has an internal audit service, which operates in accordance with the requirements of the ESFA
Post 16 Audit Code of Practice. The work of the internal audit service is informed by an analysis of the risks to
which the College is exposed, and annual internal audit plans are based on this analysis. The analysis of risks
and the internal audit plans are endorsed by the Corporation on the recommendation of the Audit Committee.
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Birmingham Metropolitan College
Members’ Report and Financial Statements
" For the year ended 31" july 2018

Statement of Corporate Governance and Internal Control (contr'nued) -

As a minimum, the Head of Internal Audit (HIA) annually provides the Corporation with a report on internal
audit activity in the College. The report includes the HIA's independent opinion on the adequacy and
effectiveness of the College s system of risk management, controls and governance processes. The report .
includes an mdependent opinion on the adequacy and effectrveness of the Colleges system of risk
management, controls and governance processes. P : - : :

. Review of effectiveness

As the Accountmg Offu:er, the Prrncrpa[ has responsrblhty for reviewing the effectrveness of the. system of ©

internal control The Pnncupal 5 revrew of the effectrveness of the system of lnternal control is mformed by
L The work of the mternal audrtors - o ' '

e - The work of the executlve dlrectors within the Col!ege who have respon5|b|l|ty for the development_ o
"and marntenance of the internal control framework : '

. Comments made by the College’s flnanCIaE statements audrtors the regularrty audrtors and the_
funding assurance auditors in their management ietters and other reports i :

The Accounting Officer has been adwsed on the implications of the result of his review of the effectiveness of
the system of internal control by the Audit Committee, which oversees the work of the internal auditor, and
other sources of assurance, and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure contlnuous |mprovement of the o
system is in place. : : R - SN

The Executive Team receives reports settlng out key performance and r|sk mdicators and consrders p055|ble ST '
control issues brought to, their attention by early warning mechanisms, ‘which are embedded within the

departments and reinforced by risk awareness training. The Executive Team and Audlt Commrttee also recejve

regular reports from internal audit and other sources of assurance, ‘which include recommendations for L -
improvement. The Audit Committee’s role in thss area is confined to a high-level review of the arrangements L

for internal control. The Corporation receives reports from the Executive Team. and the Audit Committee in

relation to internal audlt and other rrsks The emphasrs ison obtammg the relevant degree of assurance and e

not merely reportrng by exception
‘ Going concern

As reflected in these flnanaat statements, the College has recorded a deﬁat before other gains and losses of -
£8.5m for the year ended 31 July 2018, The College had a substantial creditor of £7.7m payable to the -

Education & Skills-Funding Agency at 31 July 2018, of which £6 Om is Exceptional Fmancral Support (EFS) The S

College has £391k of loans w1th its bankers that fall due W|th|n the year to31 July 2019

In addition the Corporatlon has set a defrcrt budget for 2018/19 as a result of decreases in Government
Funding related to falling 16/18 student numbers, and the adverse impact of enrolment on HE and Al_.L_s_t_ude_nt -
numbers. This continues to have a negat:ve effect on the fmancrai recovery strategy of the College

The College has applled for, and has been granted, additronal EFS of £4.3m to be pard in January 2019 and has
implemented an institutional review to deterniine the strategic future of the College. This revrew W|ii |nclude
robust financial plans to provide a sound frnanaal base for the College movrng forward

itis con5|dered by the Corporatmn that the additional EFS fund;ng and the capital recerpts from planned asset
disposals during 2018/19 will provide sufficient resources to allow the College to operate durlng thrs penod of
strategic realignment - : :

Based on the above indications the Corporation believes it is appropriate to prepare the financial statements

on a going concern basis. However, these circumstances represent a material uncertainty which may cast
srgmﬂcant doubt on the College’s ability to continue as a going concern and therefore to contlnue realising its
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Birringham Metropolitan Co!lege
" Members’ Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended 31" July 2018

Statement of Corporate Governance and Internal Control (continuéd)

assets and dlschargmg its liabilities in the normal course of business. The financial statements do not |nclude
any adjustments that would resuit from the basns of preparatlon belng |napproprlate

Approved by order of the members of the Corporatlon on 20 December 2018 and SJgned on |ts beha!f by

Mr Steve Holiis EET A S ChffHaEi . S
Chairman of the Corporation - -~ - Prmcrpal and ChfefExecunve Oﬁfcer R
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Birmingham Metropolitan College
Members’ Report and Financial Statements
Far the year ended 31 JuIy 2018

Governing Body's statement on the College s reguiarlty, proprlety and compllance wrth_ :
Funding body terms and condltlons of fundlng TR -

The Corporatlon has considered its responsrbllrtv to notlfy the Education and Skllls Fundmg Agency of matenai
irregularity, impropriety and non-compliance , with .the Education and. Skllls ‘Funding -Agency terms :and
conditions of funding, under the financial memorandum in place between the College and the Education and
Skills Funding Agency. As part of our: consrderatlon we have had due regard to the requirements of the
finanual memorandum - e - : -

We confirm, on behalf of the Corporation, that after due enqurry, and to the best of our knowledge we are
able to Identify any material irregular or improper use of funds by the Col]ege, or material non-compliance

with the Education and Skrlis Fundang Agency 5 terms and condatlons of fundmg under the Coilege s f:nancral _ Gl

memorandum

We confirm that no instances. o'f materiai irregularity, tmpropriety or funding non- cdmpl'rance have been
discovered to date. If any instances are |dentrFed after the date Df thls statement these wrll be notlfled to the
Education and Skii!s Fund;ng Agency ' : : : R SR -

el

MrSteve Hollis ~ 0 CliffHal

Chairman of the Corporation ':' o _ - Principal and Chief Executive Ofﬂcer

20 December2018. - - L i: 2oDecember2018
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Birmingham Metropolitan College
Members’ Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended 31° july 2018

Statement of the responsibilities of the members of the Corporation

The members of the Corporatron of the College are required to present audited financial statements for each
financia! year. : -

Within the terms and conditions of the Financial Memorandum agreed between the Education And Skills
Funding Agency and the Corporation of the College, the Corporation, through its Accounting Officer, is
required to prepare financial statements for each financial year in accordance with the 2015 Statement of
Recommended Practice — Accounting for Further and Higher Education and with the Accounts Direction issued
by the Education And Skills Funding Agency, and which give a true and fair view of the state of affalrs of the
College and the result for that year ' - : Vi :

In preparing the flnan_c1a| stat_ements, the Corporation.is required to:

select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently;

° make judgements and estlmates that are reasonable and prudent

o state whether appllcable accountlng standards have been followed subject to any matenal
departures disclosed and explalned in the financial statements -

e assess the College’s ability to contlnue as a going concern, drsclosmg, as appllcable matters related to

going concern; and.

e use the going concern basis of accountlng unless they either intend to llqu1date the College or to_

cease operatlons or have no realistic alternatlve but to do so.

The Corporationis also required to prepare a Members Report which describes what itis try|ng to do and how :

it is gomg about it, |nclud|ng the Iegal and admlnlstratlve status of the College

The Corporation is resp0n5|ble for keepmg proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy,

at any time, the financial position of the College and to enable it to ensure that the financial statements are
prepared in accordance with the relevantlegislation of incorporation and other relevant accounting standards.
It is responsible for taking steps that are reasonably open to it to safeguard assets of the College and to
prevent and detect fraud and other lrregu]armes :

The maintenance and integrity of Birmingham Metropolrtan College website is the responsrblhty of the
College; the work carried out by the auditors does not involve consideration of these matters and, accordingly,
the auditors accept no responsibility for any changes that may have occurred to the financial statements since

they were initially presented on the website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and _

dissemination of financial statements may differ from Ieglslatlon in otherjurlsdlctlons :

Members of the Corporation are responsible for ensuring that expendlture and income are applled for the
purposes intended by Parliament and that the financial transactions conform to the authorities that govern
them. In addition they are responsible for ensuring that funds from the Education and Skills Funding Agency
are used only in accordance with the Financial Memorandum with the Education and Skills Funding Agency and
any other conditions may be prescribed from time to time. Members of the Corporation must ensure that
there .are appropriate financial and management controls in place to safeguard public and other funds and
~ ensure they are used properly. In addition, members of the Corporation are responsible for securing
economical, efficient and effective management of the College’s resources and expenditure so that the
benefits that should be derived from the application of public funds from the Education and Skills Funding
Agency are not put at risk. _

Approved by order of the members of the Corporation on 20 December 2018 and signed on its behalf by:

( -
=
Mr Steve Hollis
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o Blrmlngnom Metropolrton College
- Members Report and Financial Stotements
' For the year ended 31 July 2018 .

: Chalrman of the__Corporatr‘on_

Independent Audrtor L Report to the Corporation of Blrm:ngham Metropohtan Coilege L

' '_"Opmlon 5

We have audlted the flnancral statements of Blrmrngham Metropolltan College ("the College") for the year - ; . '
_ _ended 31 July 2018 which compnse the Statement of Comprehenswe Income and Expenditure, the Statement_ B
. of Changes in Reserves, the Balance Sheet the Statement of Cash Flows and related notes mcludmg the Sl

accountmg polrdes in note 1
In our oplnron the fmanc:al statements

. grve a true and falr vrew of the state of the College s affalrs as at 31 July 2018 and of the College 5.

income and expendlture gams and Iosses and changes m Teserves, and cash flows for the year then AT
_1ended and R . o S R _ :
. ﬁ_have been properly prepared in accordance Wlth UK accountlng standards lncludlng FRS 102 The

_— Fmanclol Reporting Standard. appllcob!e in the UK. and ‘Republic of lreland and wrth the 2015 Sratement__ o L

L '_ of Recommended Proctrce Accountmg for Further ond Hrgher Educotron

"Basis for oplmon

We conducted our audlt in accorclance W|th lnternatronal Standards on Auditmg (UK) (”ISAs (UK)”) and
' appllcable law. -Our responsrbliltles are described below We have fulfllied our ethical responsﬂorlltles under,

and are independent of the College in accordance wrth UK ethrcal requlrements mcluding the FRC Ethical " :
Standard. We belreve that the audlt e\ndence we have obtalned isa sufﬂdent and appropnate basrs for our..\

oplnlon

. Materlal uncertamty related to gomg concern i

We draw attentron to the Gonng Concern drsclosures in note 1 to the flnancral statements Wthh |nd1cate that '

the College is dependent on the tontinued support of its bankers for the contmued provrsron of loan facrhtles P i

and the Educatlon Skills and Funding Agency. (ESFA) for short term cashflow support and, if necessarv, deferral

of repayments on the remaining balance of ‘an mterest free loan facrl:ty .under the ‘FE College Financial .

. Intervention and . Exceptional Fmancral Support’ These events: and ‘conditions, along wrth -other matters S

explained in note 1lindicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast srgnlflcant doubt on the College S, no

-ability to contmue as a gosng concern. Our oplnion |s not modrfled in respect of thas matter. SR

Othermformatron RN e PRSI Rt '

The Corporatlon is. responnble for the other mformatlon, _whrch comprlses the Report of the Governlng Bocly S

and the Corporation’s statement of corporate governance and |nternal control. Our .opinion on the fmancral.- '

statements does not cover the other |nformatron and accordangly, _we do not express an audlt oplnlon or any ; _' :

form of assurance conclus;on thereon

Qur responsmliity is to read the other mformatlon and in domg 50, _COnSIder whether based on our flnancral ST

statements audit work, the mformatlon therein is materially misstated or. inconsistent with the financial .

statements or our audit knowledge Based solely on that work we have not |dentihed matena[ mlsstatements o

in the other mformatron b _

Matters on Wthh we are requlred to report by exceptron _ N AR

Under the Post-16 Audrt Code of Practice 2017 to. 2018 (Niarch 2018) lssued by the Educatlon and Sk;lls
Funding Agency we are requrred to report to you if, in our opmlon AP

. | adequate accountmg records have not been kept by the College or.

« the College S fmancra! statements are not ln agreement wrth the accountlng records or . '_ E

e we have not recelved all the |nformat|on and explanatrons we requrre for our audlt

We have nothing to report in these respects



Brrmmghom Metropolitan Colfege
Members Report and Financial Statements
. Forthe year ended 3r July 2018

Independent Audltor s Report to the Corporatlon of Blrmmgham Metropohtan College (contmued‘)
Corporatlon s responsubrllties Sl S . . . : L

As explamed more fully in thelr statement set out oh page 20 the Corporatlon is respons:ble for the o

.preparatmn of the financial statements and for bemg satlsfled that they give a true and fair view; such internal i _
control as it determines is necessary to enable the preparatlon of financial statements that are free from R

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the College’s ability to continue as a going
concern, dlsclosmg, as applicable, ‘matters related to'going concern; and using the -going concern basis of
accounting unless it either. mtends 1o Ilqmdate the Coilege or to cease operatlons or has no reallstrc N
alternatwe but to do so. S T . : R

Aud:torsresponmbrlltles .-: B

Our ObjeCtIVES are to obtaln reasonable assurance about whether the fmanmal statements as a. whole are free

from material m:sstatement whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our, oplmon in an auditor’s report_ AR
Reasonable assurance is a high’ ievel of assurance ‘but does not guarantee that an audat conducted in

accordance with ISAs {UK) will always. detect a materlal misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise . :
from fraud or error and are considered material If, ‘individually or.in aggregate, they could reasonably be R
expected to mfluence the economic decus:ons of users taken on the basns of the fmanaal statements '

A fuller : descnptlon of_ our respon5|bllrtles :.5i prowded ~the FRC’ websrte :at__':'. '

WWW, frc org uk[audrtorsresgonsuballtle

The purpose of our audlt work and to whom we owe our responsrbrlltles

This report is made soleiy to the Corporatlon In accordance wrth Artlcle 22 of the Coileges Artlcles of v
Government. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we ‘might state to the Corporatlon those matters, we
‘are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose, To the fullest extent permitted “
by law, we do not accept or assume responsublhty to anyone other than the Coilege and the Corporat:on for Sl

our audlt work for th]S report or for the oplmons we have formed

ﬁ@i‘::

Anthony Felthouse S Sl
forand on behalf of KPMG_ LLP, Statutory Audltor
CharteredAccountants B RS

. One Snowhill ;-7

Snow Hill Queensway -

Birmingham .- - I
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Birmingham Metropolitan College

Members’ Report and Financial Statements

" For the year ended 31" July 2018

Reporting Accountant’s Report on Regularlty to the Corporatlon of Blrmmgham_
Metropolitan College .and the Secretary of State for Educatron actmg through the -
Educatton and Skrlls Fundrng Agency ' '

In accordance wrth the terms of our engagement !etter dated 1 October 2015 and further to the
requirements of the funding agreement with Education and Skills Funding Agency we have carried out an
. engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether anything has come to our attention that would
suggest that in all material respects the expenditure disbursed and income received by Birmingham
Metropolitan College . durmg the period 1 August 2017 to 31 July 2018 have not been applied to the
purposes identified by Parlrament and the flnanClaI transactlons do not conform to the authorltles whlch _
governthem . . - T BRI :

.“i‘he framework that has. been apphed is set out in the Post 16 Audlt Code of Practrce lssued by the

Education and Skills Funding Agency. in Ilne with this framework ‘our work has specuflcally not considered - " '

income received from the main funding grants generated through the Individualised Learner Record (ILR) -
returns, for whlch the Educatron and Skllls Fundmg Agency has other assurance arrangements |n piace '

This report is made sole!y to the corporatron of Blrmmgham Metropoiitan Coilege and the Educatlon and o
Skills Funding Agency in accordance. with the terms. of -our engagement letter. Our work has been .
undertaken so that we might state to the corporation of Birmingham Metropolitan College and Education
and Skills Funding Agency those matters we are required to state in a report and for no, other purpose. To -
the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone: -other than the

corporation of Birmingham Metropoirtan Coiiege and the Educatron and Skll]s Fundlng Agency for our__-_' :

worlk, for. thls report or for the conclusron we ha\re formed

Respectwe responSIblirtles of Blrmmgham Metropolltan College and the reportlng accountant .

The corporatlon of Blrmmgham Metropolltan College Is respons;b]e under the requlrements ofthe Further L -
& Higher Education Act 1992, subsequent legislation and related regulatlons and guidance, for ensuring.
that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes mtended by Parliament and e

the flnanual transactlons conform to the authorrtles whrch govern them ;

our responsrbllltres for this engagement are to obtam I|m|ted assurance and report in. accordance w:th our. - B

engagement letter and the requirements of the Post-16 Audit Code of Practice. We report to you whether

anything has come to our. attention in carrying out our work Wthh suggests that In all material respects
expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1 August 2017 to 31 July 2018 have not_‘ . o
been applied to purposes intended by Parliament or that the fmanoa! transactrons do not conform to the /-0

authorities whlch govern thern
Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Post-16 Audit Code of Practice issued by the
Education and Skllls Fundrng Agency. We performed a Iimlted assurance engagement as def:ned in that_ o
framework. : : : - :

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information
and explanations in order to provade us with sufﬁcnent appropnate ewdence to express a negat:ve
conclusion on regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant
matters that might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement Accordingly, we do not express a
positive opinion. : :
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Reportmg Accountant's Report on Regularlty to - the - Corporation of Blrmmgham
Metropolitan College and the Secretary .of State for Educatlon actmg through the_ K
Educatlon and Skills Fundmg Agency (contmued) ' ; : g

Our engagement Includes examination, on a test basus of ewdence relevant to the regulanty of the_
cot!egesmcome and expendlture AT e - s

The work undertaken to_ draw our conc!usion.inc!uded: S

. .'_Document:ng the framework of authont:es whrch govern the activities of the Co!lege

e - -Undertaking a risk assessment based on our understanding of the general control enwron_rnent
~and any weaknesses in mternaf controls identified by our audit of the financial statements; ~~ o
. . Reviewing the self—assessment ‘questionnaire which supports the representatlons included in the .~ -

“Chair of Governors and ‘Accounting Ofﬂcers statement on regulanty, propnety and comphance SRR
. with the framework ofauthor:tles L ol S : :
. Testing transactlons with related partles e

. - -Confirming through enqurrv and -sample . testlng that the Coilege has complled wuth |ts : R
. procurement policies and that these policies compiy with delegated authorities; and - '
. “Reviewing any evidénce of lmproprrety resultmg from our. work and determanmg whether lt was_

o s:gnlflcant enough to be referred toin our regularlty report ' N RS
This hst is not exhaustwe and we performed addmonal procedures desrgned to prowde us W|th sufﬂcuent o
appropriate evidence to ‘express a limited assurance conc}usron on regu[anty consustent W|th the "
requ:rements of the Post~16 Audit Code of Practlce s - : S T

Conclusion

In the course of our work nothing has come to our attentlon WhICh suggests that in all materlal respects S

the expendlture disbursed and i income: recelved during the period, 1 August 2017 to 31 Ju]y 2018 has not ' - RN

been applied to purposes intended by Parirament and, the fmancral transactrons do hot conform to the R
authorities which govern them ' . R . G

Anthony Felthouse o ' SRR SR
For and on behalf of KPMG LLP Reportlng Accountant R,
One Snowhill == - . :

Snow Hifl Queensway

Birmingham

B46GH - -

) e_uq.hu w d’ |

24



Birmingham Metropolitan Co!lege
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Statement of Comp_rehensive._tnéome_ and Expenditure .

CNotesl .
018
o _£_'000

INCOME :

" Funding body grants ; : .
Tuition fees and education contracts
Other grants and contracts '

Other.income -

8,115
S219
849

For the year ended 37’ July 2018 o

2017

51,684
8,457
180 o

CanhTw e

) Endowment a nd mvestment mcome
Total in_co_me_ : S

EXPENDITURE =~ .~ i i e v
Staffcosts = R .:. e :.. R 7

Other operatmg expenses TR R AR AU : S
Depreciation -~ L
Interestand otherfsnancecosts L R T 8

58549 .

21,544
5,357
606

©38,303
18276 .
5,355
1,942 ¢

Total expenditure

68,999 -

o eaars

Deficit befofe other gains a;id__l_bsses_'_ _ S

o (10450)

Profltond|sposalofassets SR S 1 5,604

i?ﬁsﬁff=fﬂf*ljjﬂ*

Deficit bef@fé _t'ax' S

Taxation ..~ - o SRR 10

: -.(4,3_45). f .5: o

(2,435) SR

Deficit for the year '
ActuarlaE gainin respect of pensnons schemes

(2435
12,356 %

Total Comprehenswe Encome and Expendlture for the R
yaar . S R

aa1s

.7._:.9’.9;1. 3
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Statem_ént of Changes in Reserves . FRASE

Balance at 31stjuly201.6 ; SRR

Deﬁm tfrom the income and expendlture account
Other comprehensive income. RERER

Transfers between revaluatlon and mcome and expendlture BEEN

reserves . .- i
Total comprehensive income _for the:yg_;i_f i
Balance at 31st ._Iul'y 2017 - K

Balance a_t lst Augus_t 2_[_)1_7. RPN

Deficit from themcomeand expendlture account e
Other comprehensive income - R

_Transfers between revaluatlon and income and expendlture L

res EI’VES

Balance at 31st July 2.01_3 - R
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_'(1,'1'7_.';)'

L .. _..('2’435) . i

809

~ - /Income and ' Revaluation -

.- Expenditure
S ~-account -
. '£’OO.0

reserve -
. £%000

11,134

5 ('3._59) |

For the year ended 31™ July 2018

: Total . R

. E000
9963

(2a38)
12,356

e

110,230 ¢

T Boo)

T 0921

'9,059

9,059

(a,846)
9,261

Cooa09

toges

110,825 -

19884 o
19,884

C(asdE)
119,261,

Ca724

: a09)

a415

13,783

10,516



Bfrmfngham Metropolitan Colfege
Members’ Report and Financial Statements
_ Forthe year ended 31 July 2018 .

Balance sheet as at 31 July

© ‘Notes. . " 2018 . 2017 . .
' L £000 €000
Fixed assets S R . T TR L
Tangiblefixedassets ~ -~ . S0 01l 197,271 105,373
Investments . .- T T o 32 - 1,940 - ¢
R ' BRI T 97,271 107313

Current assets : e SN e T T T e A

Tradeand other receivables =~ T 13 1,489 1,864 PR

Cashand cash equivalents * =~ .0 T g 13270 2,420 - '.
I P S PE R P 2,816 4,284

Less: Creditors?emounts_fal_li:ng due within oneyear _:':14 L '.'(26_,42_7)_ S (32,262) R

Net current I_iab_i.liti:e:s.&. '.ﬂ_“ N _ . o '_ . s - (_23;612) ..'(:2_‘7,972.3.) a

Total assets less _cu.rree.t_ liabilities : : j o X . o - : _73.,65_9._. 2 :_ ."7:'9,3.35_~ .
Less_:_(_:redi_tor_s_—{emoents f_aiiing.due'a.\ﬂgr mote t_ha_n ._°n.9 year '15: o ._.(1_6,_726).-' ‘ . {19’529) L
Prows:ens ) | R PR R i e |

Defined beneﬁtobl:ganons L R TR L (30,400} (37,307)
Other provisions .o 17 (23) 281

Total r_|e_t _assets ST L 124,299 19 884

Unrestricted _rese_r_ves _

Incomeandexpendltureaccount R I 1, 783 9,059
Revaluationreserve ' ' e T T e e e 10516 10,825 ©

Total reserves - TR EEEITER R ‘24,299 ~ 19,884 '

The financial statements on pages 25 to 52 were approved hy the Corporatlon on 20 December 2018 and were
signed on its behalf by: : . D :

71 W® ‘ MM

Mr Steve Hollis ' ‘Mr Cliff Hall - _
Chair of the Corporation Accounting Officer
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Statement of Cash Flows

. Notes 2018 - = 2017
S . £1000 - .£J000

Cash inflow from operatlngactiwttes R . T T :
Deficit for theyear . S oL (4.848) 0 (2,435) .
Adjustment for non. cash items Sl e T T T T
Depreciation . ... N T Sl _ 5357 5,355 <.

Decrease/(lncrease)ln debtors_ : D S L.l 375 o290y -

Decreasein creditors i+ o T e (474) 0 (2,927)
Decrease in provisions . LR R PRI R (7.5 ) I A (491)
Pensions costs |ess contrlbutions payable P N R .. °2,508 . 1,880
Assetimpairment = % : o R ST B '.'-.'."1:94_0 S
Ad}ustment for muestmg or fmancmg actmtles AR IR o IR

Interest payable - . T P Y -1 S 592
Profitonsaleof fixed assets- -~ .~ - o (5,608) o (145)

Net cash flow from operating activities. - SRS PETERRE : ' (704) . 1,532 o

Cash flows from Investing activities . '

Proceeds fromsaleofflxed assets S [ - : S EOS S - .'9,900_.:3' i - 145 A

Investmentincome - i e R PR 5 EERRRREInS -} :
Payments madeto acqulreﬁxed assets . - L ._-(_1.503) o (2,325).

Cashf!owsfromfinancingac;i_v_ities.1' L LA AR SRR e
Interest paid RS o T L TR e L {626)__ Lo o(592)

"‘8403 L {2172)

Repayments of amounts borrowed -~ = RSCI T oo A8ae7) o (1,084)

(8,7.9.3) :_'--: ;3'-'(1;656)

Decreése__in cash and cash equivalents in th_e_yeaf o s (L,095) i (2,296) .

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year .~ "~ _ T o 2,420 4716

Cash and cash equivalents atend qftheyear o ' A7 R '1,325 . : 2,4_20_
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Notes to the accounts :
{forming p_art of the financial _statements) B

1 Statement of accountmg policres

The following accounting policies have been applied consrstently in dealmg W|th |tems whlch are consrdered o '
materlal in relatron to the ﬁnanaal statements : o B :

- Basis of preparatlon -
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance wrth the Statement of Recommended Practrce
Accounting for Further and Higher Education 2015 (the 2015 FE HE SORP), the Colfege Accounts Direction for
2017 to 2018 and in accordance with Flnanmal _Reporting Standard 102 - “The Financial Reportrng Standard -
applicable in the United Kingdom and Republic of ireland” {FRS 102) The College i isa pub[rc beneflt entlty and .

has therefore applled the relevant publrc benefit requrrements of FRS102..

The preparation of financial statements in complrance W|th FRS 102 reqtures the use of certam crltical "
accounting estlmates It also reqmres management to exercrse Judgement in applylng the Coliege 5 accountmg
policies. ' . : S R : ) o

Basis of accountmg : : .
The financial statements are prepared in accordance vvlth the historical cost conventlon as modifled by the use .

of prewous valuations as deemed cost at transstfon for certam non- current assets P

Gomg concern

The fnanc:al statements have been prepared on the gomg concern basrs which the Corporatron belreves to be B : _. o
appropriate on the basis set out below. The College made an operatlng deﬂcrt of £2, 908m in the year to 31 July R s

2018 and had net current llab|llt|es of £23 613m at that date L

The College |mplemented a recovery plan in 2014/15 A key element of the recovery was to gam support of

both the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) and the.College’s bankers - Lloyds and Barclays. .Th_e ESFA .
reinforced its support by providing an interest free £16m-loan to the College in 2015/16, under the ‘FE College e

Financial Intervention and Exceptional Financial Support’ (lnitlally from ‘BIS, however this was transferred to
+ the Department for Education (Dft} following changes within government in the autumn of 2016). £1.5m was
repaid during 2015/16, £0.7m during 2016/17 and a further £7.8m during 2017/18 of which £7m was from the
sale of a surplus property, CEAC. This leaves an outstanding amount of £6m to be pa:d over the next two years,

with £1.5m of this being repaid in September 2018 The College is currently renegonatmg the repayment_ - E

profile for this loan with the ESFA. - TR _ _ _ -
in addition to the £4. 5m that is now due in respect ofthe ongrnal ESFA Ioan, a further repayment to the ESFA '

of £1.7m in respect. of historic funding [rregularltles is. repayabie “The ESFA has agreed to comblne the R

repayments of the loan and the funding irregularities into one Ioan, the terms of which are currently being
renegotiated. The ESFA confirmed this position in writing to the College on 31 October 2017. A condition of
the renegotiation is that the College disposes of two further properties and uses the proceeds to repay the

ESFA loan. These two properties are no longer in use by the College. It Is anticipated a further £5.3m WIlI be S

raised from these drsposals w1th the remalmng £0.9m to be repald from workmg capltal

In December 2018, the CoEIege was granted a further £4.3m of Exceptlonal Fmancral Support by the ESFA to :
enable it to meet its liabilities as they fall due for at least 12 months from the date of approval of these .
financial statements. The College’s latest cashflow forecasts assume proceeds of £1.2m will be realised from
an additional property disposal by no later than March 2019, These proceeds will be retained by the College to
meet its ongoing working capital needs. Should this drsposal not proceed as forecast, the Coliege may require
further short term cashflow support from the ESFA. : : : . S

In addition to the ESFA loan of £6m, the College currently has £9.2m {as detailed at Note 14) of loans
outstanding with its two banks, and having breached its loan covenants in the absence of a waiver at 31 July
2018, this amount has been wholly classified as due within one year in line with Financial Reporting Standards.
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Notes to the accounts (continued)
1 Statement of accounting policies (continued)

The banks have indicated their continuing support, and the College is in the process of negotiating a revised
set of covenants with the banks as further breaches are forecast at 31 July 2019 The bank loan repayment o
periods however remain unchanged ‘ - : :

The £1.7m relating to historic- funding |rregular|tres is currently |ncluded |n other credltors and wrll be_ -
transferred to the ESFA loan batance on completlon of the negotratrons AN :

The College continues to be monrtored by the FE Commissroner under the |ntervent|on process In addition .
the Educatron and Skills Funding Agency continues to support the College. and month[y case meetings are in - :
place to review progress. Regular meetmgs W|th the banks are held to momtor progress and ensure fmancral E
targets are met. ' . ‘ . SR , R

Based on the above rnd|catrons the Corporatlon beheves |t is approprrate to prepare the flnancral statements o
on a going concern basis. However, these circumstances _represen_t a material ‘uncertainty which may cast -

significant doubt on the College’s ability to continue as a going concern and therefore to continue realising its - -

assets and discharging its liabllities in the normal course of business. The financial ‘statements do not lnclude
any adjustments that would result from the basrs of preparatron berng mapproprlate o - -

Recognltron ofi income

Government revenue grants mclude fundmg body recurrent grants anct other grants and are accounted for

under the accrual model as permrtted by FRS 102. Funding bedy.recurrent grants are measured in fine with

best estimates for the period of what is recewable and depend on the partrcular income stream invelved. Any
under .or over achrevement for the Adult Educabon Budget is adjusted for, and reflected in, the level of

recurrent grant recognlsed in-the income. and expendlture account The. fmal ‘grant income ‘s normally
determined with the conclusion of the year end reconciliation process with the fundmg body following the -

year end, and the results of any funding audits. 16-18 iearner—responsrve fundmg 15 not normally subject to el
reconcrllatlon and Is, therefore not subject to contract adjustments - :

The recurrent grant from OfS represents the fundmg allocatlons attrrbutable to the current frnanc|al year and
is credrted dlrect to the Statement of Comprehenswe Income . :

Where part of a government grant is deferred the deferred element is recogmsed as deferred rncome W|th|n
" creditors and allocated between cred|tors due w1thrn one year and creditors due safer more than one year as
appropriate. : : . . : : _ .

Grants (including research grants) from non-government sources are recognised in income when the College is

entitled to the income and performance related conditions have been met. Income received in advance of -

performance related conditions being met is recogrused as deferred |ncome wrthln cred|tors on the balance
sheet and released to mcome as the cond1t|ons are met : o EEETERTR - :

Capital grant fundmg

Government capital grants are capltallsed held as deferred income and recogmsed in income over the
expected useful life of the .asset, under the accrual method as permitted by FRS 102. Other, non-
governmental, capital grants are recognised in income when the College is entitled to the funds subject to any
performance related conditions being met. Income received in advance of performance related conditions
being met is recognised as deferred income W|th|n credrtors on the Balance Sheet and released to mcome as
conditions are met. SR : D L :

Fee income

tncome from-tuition fees is stated gross of any expenduure whrch Is not a drscount and is recogmsed in the
period for which rt is received. - :
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Notes to the accounts {continued)
1 -Statement of accounting _policies _(contr'nued) .

lnuestment mcome

All income from short-term dep05|ts is credited to the income and expendtture account |n the perlod in which -
itis earned ona recewable basrs : : . S Lo _ S

Agency orrangements i

The College acts as an agent in the coliectlon and payment of certaln drscretlonary support funds Related

payments received from the funding bodies and subsequent disbursements to students are excluded from the -

income and expenditure of the College where the College is, exposed to m|n|mal risk or enjoys mrnlma! econom|c
benefit re]ated to the transactlon ' : :

Accountmg for post-employrnent benefrts

Post- empioyment benefrts to employees of the College are pnncrpaliy provrded by the Teachers Pensron . o

Scheme {TPS) and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS). These are defmed benefrt plans which are_ .
externally funded and contracted out of the State Second Pensron R T :

Teachers Pensron Scheme ( TPS)

The TPS is an. unfunded scheme. Contrlbutrons to the TPS are ca!culated so as to spread the cost of pensrons

over employees’ working lives with the College in such a way that the pension cost is a substantrally level © AR
percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contrrbutrons are deterrnlned by quairfled actuarres' T

on the basrs of valuatlons using a prospectlve beneftt method

The TPS is a multi- employer scheme and there is msuffrclent mforrnatlon avarlable to use defmed benefut_ IR v
accounting. The TPS is ‘therefore treated as a defined contnbutron plan and the contributions. recogmsed asan .

expense | in the income statement in the perlods dunng whzch serwces are rendered by employees o

West Midlands Local Govemment Pensron Scheme (LGPS)

The LGPS is a funded scheme The assets ofthe LGPS are measureci usrng closrng farr values LGPS lrabri:ties are 0

measured using the projected unrt credit method and drscounted at the current rate of return on a high quality
corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuatlons are obtained at least
triennially and are updated at each balance sheet date. The amounts charged. to operatmg surplus are the
current service costs and the costs of scheme mtroductrons benefrt changes settlements and curtallments
They are rncluded as part of staff costs as lncurred ; ; S

Net interest on the net defined benefrt irabllrty/asset is also recognlsed in the Statement of Comprehensrve'
Income and comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme
assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the penod by the rate

used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets :

and the actual return on the scheme assets Is recogmsed in other recognrsed gams and Iosses =

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immedrat_ely in othe_r recognrsed gains and losses,
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Notes to the accoun_ts_ {continued)

Short term Employment benefits

Short term employment benefits such as salarles and compensated absences (holiday pay} are recognised as

an expense in the year in wh|ch the employees render service to the College. Any unused benefits are accrued . Lol

and measured as the addltlonal amount the College expects to pay asa resuit of the unused entrtiement

Enhanced Pensions

The actual cost of any enhanced ongomg pens:on to a former member of staff is pa:d by the college annua!ly : ‘_ ' R
An estimate of the expected future cost of any enhancement to the ongoing pension of a former member of -~ - -

staff is charged in full to the College s income in the year that the member of staff retires. in subsequent years.. -
a charge is made to provrsrons in the balance sheet usmg the enhanced pensnon spreadsheet provlded by the S
funding bodles : SRR : . T . : : . R

Non current Assets Tanglble f|xed assets :

Tangible fixed assets.are stated at cost less accumulated depreclatlon and accumulated Impairment losses.
Certain items of fixed assets that had been revalued to fair value on or prior to the date of transition to the -

2015 FE HE SORP, are measured on the basrs of deemed cost being the revalued amount at the date of that S RRRE

revaluatlon
Land and bur‘ldings. e
Freehold bulldlngs are deprecuated ona straight lme basus over the:r expected useful I:ves as follows DT

. Freehoid 50 years -
» ' Leasehold -50years =
» Refurblshments - 15 year_s

Freehold land is not depreclated asit |s consrdered to have an lnl"nlte useful Iife

Freehoid bundlngs are depremated over thelr expected useful economrc life to the College of between 20 and '
50 years. The Colfege has a palicy of depreclatmg major adaptatlons to burldrngs over the perlod of thEil‘ useful -
economic life of between 20 and 50 years. - s ST

A review for |mpa|rment of a frxed asset ig carried out. |f events or changes !n csrcumstances mdlcate that the_
carrying amount of any flxed asset may not be recoverable :

On adoption of FRS 102 the Coliege followed the transutlonal prowsnon to retarn the book value of Iand and
buildings, wh|ch were revalued in 1996 but not to adopt a pollcy of revaluatuons of these propertles m the
future. TR ; R - '

Assets under construction . .

Assets under construction are accounted for at cost based on the value of archrtects certrflcates and other S
direct costs, incurred to 31 July They are not depreuated untrl they are brought mto use. -
Subsequent expendrture on exrstmg ﬁxed assets .

Where significant expendature is incurred on tanglble f:xed assets after mmal purchase it is charged to income
in the period it is incurred, unless it increases the future beneflts' to the College in whrch case it is cap:tallsed _
and depreciated on the relevant ba5|s
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Notes to the accounts (continued)
1 State‘ment of accounting policies {continued)

_ Equrpment

Equipment costlng less than ES 000 per. mdlvrdual item is wrrtten off o the mcome and expendlture account |n
: .the penod of acqmsmon Ali other equrpment Is capltalised at cost : TR -

‘Inherited equment is depreaated on a stratght lme bas;s over |ts remainmg useful economrc lrfe to the
College of one and a half to four years AlI other equlpment tS depremated over |ts usefui economrc !lfe as.
follows o : S g : . R

. .Motor vehicies and generat equrpment ' — i .'3 8 years

e Computeredurpment e e 3 years
. e . Furniture and fittmgs DI St Lo ol Byears
e _ Piant .' AT .E:Z_ - S 8-1{) yéa[sz

-Borrowmg costs SRR o o R i L .':'; U R R
Borrowrng costs are recogmsed as expend:ture in the penod in whrch they are mcurred

. Investments

Listed rnvestments heid as_hon- current assets and current asset mvestments, whlch may |nc!ude llsted
investments, ‘are stated at fair value w:th movements recognlsed in Comprehenswe Incoma. Investments
compnsmg unquoted equrty mstruments are measured at falr value, estlmated usrng a valuatron techmque

Inventones N

Inventones are stated at the Iower of thelr cost and net reahsable value be:ng selhng pnce Iess costs to
_complete and sell Where necessary, provrsuon |s made for obsolete slow movmg and defectlve |tems

Cash and cash equwalents

Cash mcludes cash in hand deposrts repayable on demand and overdrafts Deposrts are repayable on demand ;f
they are in practlce avarlab]e wrthln 24 hours wrthout penalty I

Cash equwalents are short term hrghiy Irqurd mvestments that are readlly convertrble to known amounts of cash
- with insignificant | risk of change in value. An mvestment quallﬁes asa cash equwalent when it has maturlty of 3
months or less from the date of acqursrtlon R : : Sl i

N

Fmancral Ilab|I|t|es and equrty

' Financial Iiablhtles and eqmty are classaﬂed according to the substance of the ﬁnanctal lnstrument 'S contractual .
obligations, rather than the ﬂnanoal mstrument’s legal form. - - o : :

All loans, investments and short term deposrts held by the College are cIassrﬁed as bas:c fmanual |nstruments B
in accordance with FRS 102, These instruments are Initially recorded at the transaction price less any -
transaction costs (historical cost}). FRS 102 requires that basic financial instruments are subsequently measured -

at amortised cost, however the College has calculated that the dlfference between the historical cost and
amortised cost basis is not material and so these financial instruments. are stated on the balance sheet at
historical cost Loans and mvestments that are payable or recewable w1thm one year are not d;scounted
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Notes to the accounts (continued) -
1 Statement_o_f ac_:c_ounting pol_ici_es_(continued) e

Forengn currencytranslatron :-' '

Transactions denomrnated in forergn currencies are recorded usrng the rate of exchange ruling at the date of
the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities. denommated in forelgn currencles are translated at the rates of

exchange ruling at the end of the financial year with all. resultmg exchange dlfferences berng taken to the BRI

' mcome and expenditure account in the perlod in whlch they arrse

' -'Taxatron

The Coilege is consrdered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 Finance Act 2011 and therefore it e

~ meets the definition of a-charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes. Accordmgly, _the Co]lege is - PR,

potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income er capital gains recerved wrthln categories covered by
Chapter 3 Part 11 Corporation Tax Act 2011 or Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992 to
the extent that such income or galns are applled exclusrvely to charrtable purposes Sl R : .

The College is partlally exempt |n respect of Value Added Tax so that |t can only recover a mlnor element of B _:
VAT charged on its inputs. Irrecoverable VAT on inputs is mcluded in the costs of such mputs and added to the . '
cost, of tang:ble fixed assets as appropriate where the mputs themselves are tanglble flxed assets by nature S

Provrsions and contlngent llabrlltles
Provrsrons are recognlsed when =

- the Col[ege has 3 present Iegal or constructrve oblrganon asa result of a past event _
L _- . |t is probable that a transfer of economic benefrt will be. requnred to settle the oblrgatron and
"o -a relrable estrmate can be made ofthe amount of the oblrgatlon R ORI

Where the effect of the trme value of money is materrai the amount expected to be requrred to settle the'_ Do

obligation _is recognlsed at present.value using a pre- -tax. drscount rate. The unwmdmg of the drscount |s_ L S

recogmsed asa finance cost in the statement of comprehensrve mcome in the penod it arrses

A contlngent lrabrlrty arrses froma past event that grves the Coliege a possrble oblrgatron whose exrstence wrll_
only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwrse of uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the .

College. Contmgent liabilities also arise in circumstances where a provision wou]d otherW|se be made but elther it ': o AR
is not probable that an outflow of resources wrlE be required or the amount of the obllgatron cannot be measured U

reliably.

Contingent !rabllrtles are not recognlsed rn the balance sheet but are. dlsclosed in the notes to the f‘manclal S

statements
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Notes to _the accounts _(continued)

1

Statement of accountmg pohcles {contmued)

Judgements in applymg accounting pohcaes and key sources of estsmatlon uncertamty

In preparlng these fmanual statements management have made the foiiowmg judgements o '

Determme whether Ieases entered mto by the College. either as a lessor or a lessee are operatlng or :
finance leases. These decisions depend on an assessment of whether the risks and rewards of ownershlp :
have been transferred from the lessor to the lessee on a lease by lease basis. B -

; Determme whether there are indicators of |mpa|rment of the group’s tanglble assets, mcludlng goodwrll
~Factors taken into consideration in reaching such a decision inciude the economic viability and expected
future fmanaal performance of the asset and where it IS a component ofa Iarger cash-generatmg umt the -

vlablhty and expected future performance of that, un:t

Other key sources of estimation uncertainty '

Tangrbfe fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets, other than lnvestment propertles are deprecuated over their useful Iives takmg into -
account residual values, where appropriate. The actual lives of the assets and residual values are assessed
annually and may vary depending on.a number of factors. In re-assessing asset lives, factors such as
technological innovation and maintenance programmes -are “taken -into account. Resmiual value .
assessments cons:der issues such as future market COﬂdithﬂS the remammg I:fe of the asset and

" pro;ected dlsposal values e

Locai Government Pensron Scheme C

" The present value of the Local. Government Pensuon Scheme defmed benefit |iablllty depends ona number._ i B
of factors that are determined on an actuanal basis uslng a variety of assumptions. The assumptions used w1

in determining the. net_cost {income) for. pensions include the discount rate. ‘Any changes in these
assumptions, which are disclosed. in note 23, will impact the carrying amount of the pension liability.

Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuanal valuation = - -
performed at 31 March 2016 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31 July 2018, . -
Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full actuana! valuatlon S

would |mpact on the carrymg amount of the pensron Ifab:htv

'35




" Birmingham Metropolitan College
Members’ Report and Financial Statements
. Forithe year ended 31" July 2018

2 Funding coundil grants

S 2018 - 2017
£000 . £000

Recurrentgrants _ ' L T e P : :
Education and Skills FundlngAgency adult S 3eE 13,521
Education and Skills Funding Agency —16-18 =~ © 306270 133,023 .
Education and Skills FundmgAgency apprentnceshlps_ e 73,8350 04,088
Specific Grants ' : o s s e
. Releases ofgovernmentcapltalgrants P S RURCE : Lo 701 1705 e

TotaF_ T D i e o ag3er . 51684

3 Tuition fees and education contracts

L2018 - z2017

Adulteducation fees * . S e 1,634 0. 1,585

Apprenticeship fees and contracts = -~ I 524 T '--_':'67.8 :
Fees for FE loan supported courses .. " = 10 T P 2,790 2,582

Fees for HE loan supported courses - ST g L T Eag
Total tuitionfees -~ v PR 5543 0 00 B377

Educa_tlon contracts = 1 g B RRRRRIEN 2,572 3,080 R

4  Other grants an'_d'gontracts_ B

L '-iozs_ 2017
- £000 - £7000

European Commission R 143 85
Other grants and contracts . - . U SRR PR R & DR T -

Total BN A P o g . 1m0
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Notes to the Accounts_(contin_ued)_ o

5 . Otherincome '

-Catering and residences .- X :
Other income generating activities
-Non government ca_p_ital grants - -

© Total - .

6 Investmentincome "

Other interestreceivable
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) Birminghdm Metropoh‘ten College
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For the year ended 31 July 2018

Notes to the Accounts (contmued}
7. Staff costs
Key management persenne! _

Key rhanagement personnel are those .persons hav‘mg authority and responsibility' for plannlng,
_dlrectmg and controlling the activities of the College and are represented by the College Executive

Team which comprises the Principal, Company Secretary and other senior academlc and supportz_' -

posts Staff costs mclude compensatlon paid to key management personnel for [oss of offl ce.

Em q'[um_en_t_s of Key rﬁenage_meﬁ'_t p_e'r_sonnelj Accounting Officer and other hig_h_er p.ai.d staff

oe 207
The number of key management personnei lnciudlng the Accountlng i BRI 8 :_': 10
Ofﬁcerwas : T R

The number of key management personnel and other staff who received annual emoluments, excluding
pension contributions and employers natlonal msurance but mcludlng benefsts in klnd m the :
followmgrangeswas : S - = e L SUN
- : _ Semor post ho!ders o _.OtherSt_af‘f: _ Lol
2018 0020170 2018 . . 2017
' 'No_.ﬁ_'_-:-_ % UNo. CUNe. “No.

£60,001 to £70,000 -
£70,001 1o £80,000 = -
£80,001 to £90,000 .-
£100,001 to £110,000 - -
£110,001 t0 £120,000 -
£120,001 to £130,000 -~
£130,001 to £140,000 =~ .
£140,001 to £150,000 . " - T R
£150,001 to. £160,000 ¢ ot R R EI T
£260001t0£270,000 g el

N .

f ¥ 1 PR » - R SR Y
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Notes to the Accounts {continued)

7  Staff costé

The average number of persons {including key management personnei) emp!oyed by the Coiiege dur| ng_
the year, descrlbed as full tlme equwalents was: : : . :

Teaching staff . -
Non teach_ing staff

Staff costs for the above _persqr_;si_- LT

Wages and salaries
. Social security costs
Other pension costs

Payroil sub total .

Fundamental restructuring costs -

Levy Payments - -

538

414

2018
s N.o, B

' 2017 -
“ No.

381

952

"2018

- £7000 NP

30,023 .
2,882 -

o471

- 2017

£'000 -

."29__,303 AR

2,864

' '_ 7,064

5732

37,904

39,969
contractual 387

- non contractual . TR i L
_ R S s

33

366 -

40,492

39

38,303 ©
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: For the year ended 31" July 2018

Notes to the Accounts (continued)
7 Staff costs

Key management personnel compensation is made up as follows: B _ S o .
_ R P R : 2018 2017
- £000 . £'000

Salaries - gross of salary sacrlflceand waived emoluments P R ¥ 1,013
Employers Natlunallnsurance S T Coo 121 e 126
Benefltsmkmd E T TR T A T RN L
Sl 1088 1138
Pension'cont'ributions_-._ AR, IR R R - ¥ C137

Totaler_nolument_s L S S "1"1'94 S 1’275 R

There were no amounts due to key management personnel that were walved in the year nor any
salary sacnf:ce arrangements in place ‘

The above compensatlon mcludes amounts paya bEe to the Accounting Offlcer (who is also the highest
paid offcer) of; : -

2018 2017 o
Salaries = e SRR 266 L 266 i
Benefitsinkind .-t o s 0 B P L PRI A

66 SN 266

Pension contributions . - Ll S ._ R -7,
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Notes to the Accounts (continued)

8  Other operating expenses

Teaching costs
Non teaching costs
Premises costs - -

Total =
Other ope_ral_iing_expe_nseé inc!ude:
Auditor's’ rerhuneration‘- :

Financial statements audlt
Internal audit .

Other services prowded by thefmanmal statements audltors e

9 Intere_ét payable _:.::-'_- H

| On banklpa_ns','_dverdr_afts and other loans:

On fmanceleases

Net mterest on defmed pensmn llabii:ty and enhanced pensson i

Total

10 Taxatioh

- 2018

S £000

5,357
11,751
4,436

2017

UE000 .
.. 4,589
8,609
. 5,078

21544

2018 .
000

65

18276

2007
U000

64

‘2018

626

2017

£000

S92

.9.80 g

1,350,

1606

1,942

The members do not believe the Coliege was, Ilab!e for any corporatlon tax arlsa ng out of |ts actlwtes

during elther penod

41
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Notes to the Accounts (continued)
11 Téngible fixed assets

“Land and buildings ‘Equipment  Assets in the - -Total
Lt courseof ¢

e SR : " Construction.
- Freehold - - Long e
" leasehold T S
_ C£000 . £000 - £000 . £000 - - £000
Cost or valuation e T T RTINS R
At1August2017 . ..t 142501 0 410 - 12,833 . 95 155539

Additions 0 o ggg . . Uiggg oL igg 14180

TransferAssetUnderConstructlon e SRR~ L I NRETINE (-3 DEPER A P
Disposals  * * *. Coooe o (10,385) 0 - T (304) 0 T - T (10,669)

At31July2018 ~ . . . 132465 410 13623 90 146288

Depreciation R : T S .
AtlAugust2017 . .o 0. 41527 . ¢ 30 8609 - . - 50,166

Chargefortheyear .~~~ .. '383%6 . 4. . 1517 Lo usasyo
Elimination in respect of disposals ~~ ~{6,213) ' - f283) - - .. (6,506)

At3LI2018 . 39150 . “3a . ggaz. . . . a7

Net bDOk_VE'U_E at_31 .luly 2018 . . Lo .93'315;‘ e _-76. :._3’7-90 R 90 .: 97’271 | -. S

Netbook valueat31july2017 - 100974 ‘80 4224 " 95 105373 ..

12 Investments

During the year the College wrote down the carrymg value of the ca plta] mvestment in Harbome Academy :

from £1.94m to zero on the baS|s ofan updated assessment of its recovera blllty
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- Notes to the Accounts (continued) .

13 Trade and other recelvables -
2018 . 2017
. L £000 . €000
Amounts falling due within one year: O RO

Tradereceivables - = e S o 668 01,411
Otherdebtors. =~ =" - B T R B2
Prepayments and accruedmcome B AR B 5120 2860
Amounts owed by the ESFA * T io 0 o308 155

Total . . ST L 1,890 71,864,

14 Cre_ditdrs_: amounts falling due within one year B

2018 L2017
CUE000 £’ooo S

Bankloansandoverdrafts SRS G s 9,284 00 - 9,611 -
BISLoan L s et gegon L 11,700
Trade payables -+ -5 s e T 605 L5000
Obligations underVATscheme S e R T C24
Other taxation and social security - et 1,385 00 1,339
Payments received onaccount o S 83001181
Accruals o e 7,088 0000 17,057
Deferred income - government capltal grants L 20 700
Amounts owed to the ESFA " 00 LA U 530

Total oot ot T 26427 0 32,262

15 Creditors: amounts_félli_ngf_iue after one year B S
L £000 7 - £000

Deferredmcome governmentcapitai grants L S - 16,726 - 17,429 0

Total L 16726 19,529
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Notes to the Accounts (continued)
.16  Maturity of debt -
{a) - Loans and overdrafts

Loans and overdrafts are repayable as follows: '\

2018 - 2017

£000 . £000
In oneyear_orless_:_;Bankloan T T EEERR L .. 9,244 - 9,611
S Eslean U g0 q1700

At31July 2016, 2017 and 2018, loan covenants with Lloyds and Barelays Bank had been breached and . -+ -
formal waivers from the banks were not In place as atthose dates. The College has discussed and agreed .
its financing position with banks subsequent to the year end, and negotiated revised covenant suites, )
although the loan repayment periods remain unchanged, However, in accordance with Financial Reporting
Standards, the College was deemed not to havean uncond:tmnal rlghtto defer payment for morethan 12
months at the balancesheet date : : vl T

During 2014 theformer Sutton Coldfleld College loan was completed There are nowthree loans in _' '
progress two from the former Matthew Boulton College and one from the former Stourbrldge Col lege

kR Theformer Matthew Boulton College loan is. secured ona portlon of the freehold Iand and bundlngs of
the Matthew Boulton Campus, bears interest até. 07% and 5.95% and is repayable by instalments falling -

.idue between 1August 2007 and 31]u|y 2030. The outstandmg balancetransferred on merglng was. R e

£3, 732 000

2. The former Stourbrldge College loan agreement W|th Lioyds Ba nk bea rs :nterest at 5 195%, 5. 250%,
5.280% and 5.345% and is repayable by instalments falling due between 2011 and 2035 The outstandlng
balance transferred on merg| ng was £7, 686 ooo. IR : : :
The BiS loanis repayable on terms to be agreed by 31 Ma rch 2019 excludlng repayments in relatlon to
property sales ' : Sl ' - L
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Notes to the Accounts (continued) -
17 Provisions S T e T P .

L " Defined . Enhanced. . - Other - . . Total
benefit - - " pensions o e
" Obligations =~ T

At1August2017 SO S 37 07 C2321 0 iass T 39en

.£,000 : .. B :E.’OO:U_ . : £I'.0.00. .. £’003 -: L

'Expend:turemthepersod RS S S 1569 Ces) {813y 993 :

"Transferredfrommcomeandexpendltureaccount el e8S B0 L e 01,065

CAdtwarialgain (9261) . d8S) o)

At31.|uly2018 PR TR 30800 --'2,153 SRR T 32,633 Cmen

" . Defined beneflt obl lgatlons relate to the llabl lltl es under the College 5 members h:p of the Local Government penston s
Scheme Further details are given in Note 23 : :

Other provnsuons relate to a legai obllgatlon to carry out remedlal pipework in the |nstttut|0n s ieasehold buildmg SRREh

This work w1ll be completed dur| ng 2017/18

The enhanced pensmn prowsmn relates to the cost of staff who have a!ready left the Colleges employ and -

commitments for reorganisation costs from which the College cannot reasonabiy withdraw at the balance sheet date s

This prows;on has been recalculated in accorda nce w1th guldance lSSUECl by the funding lDOCllES

The prmcnpal assumptl ons for thss calculatson are:

0230% 0 02.30%

Price inflatlon .

Ca018 2017

Discount rate | o SR _'...1..30% . 130% R

18 Cash and cash equivalents: RS

At 1 August " I '[Ca_shfl_o.w_s._' SR Other. AL i
Llip017 Ui changes 0 h2018

£000 £000 €000 £000

Cash and z_:._a_lsh equivalents . _:. L T '2,420'. - '_:_-_'..'ll,O_SS)_ w 2 1,324

Total - L S T 240 oo _ T 1'324

19 Capital commitments L
T T 2018 2017
- £000 0 " £000

Commitments contracted for at31July . : F e L Ty 300

5
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Notes to the Accounts (continued)

20 Lease Obligati_o_rle R

At31 July the C_olle_ge_ha_d mihEmurrl_l_ease p_a_yhnent_s _urrder_ no'n—cancellable operating leases as _foll_o_ws: S
201802070

, o S AT C£000 - U£7000

Future minimum lease payments due - - R RSP

'.Landandbu'ildings S o S T B T T T T

j Notlaterthanoneyear R A e e S e g

_later than oneyear. and notlater thanflveyears o R TR §793 . 835 RO
_':laterthanflveyears T I T 08 e e 35

4586 44201

Other . 7 7 T T T
Notlaterthanoneyear A SRR RN MR P RN SRRy s

T .221':_

Torel lease paymentsdue . : T : 4586 464}" :
21 Con.tlrl.ée.nt _lie.l:lili't.i.es. SEEREN = . e

The College has no contl ngent llab|l|t|es as at31 July 2018 (2017 £n|l)

' 22 Events aﬂer the reportmg perrod |

On the3 August 2018 the College sold one oflts .orooertl €5 .The Old Art School in lSutton Coldfleld

Proceeds totalled £473k and the property had a net book value of £218k. Barclays ba nk are holdrng the ERTRER . o
proceeds dueto a cha rge on the property relatl ng to the loan the College has wnth Barclays Bank '
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Notes to the Accounts (continued)

23 Defined benefit obiigations

The Colleges employees belong 1o two prlnupal post—employment beneflt plans the Teachers Pensmn Scheme -

England and Wales (TPS} for academic and related staff and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for:

non-teach[ng staff whlch is managed by West Mldiands Pens;on Fund Both are multn employer deﬁned-beneflt o

ptans. : : .
The pension costs are assessed in accordance wath the advlce of mdependen’c quahfled actuar:es The latest e
formal actuarral valuatson of the TPS was 31 March 2012 and of the LGPS 31 March 2016 ' ' '

; '_-.__2.013

2017

Total pension cost for the _year.'. L o T . o
T £'000 L £'000 -
Teachers Pension Scheme: contributio:n_s_p_aid_ _' - :.'2,5_7_7_ S "._"2,7'_?32 B
Local Government Pension Scheme T e
Contributions paid 2,953 2470 0

FRS 102 (28) charge : o AR ~1,534 - . 530 o :
Chargetothe Statement of Comprehenswe Income e 4487 0 13,000
Enhanced pension chargeto Statementof Comprehenswe _ ST . Sl

Total Pension Co_._st forYear : DT o _ :; L g R 7,064 PR '-"-'5,732

Contributions amountmg to £668 000 (2017 £629 000) were payable to the scheme and are mcluded |n_ SR

creditors, .o
Teachers’ Pension Scheme .

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, eo_ntri_but_or_y,kdeflned_bene_fit.scheme, governed by the .
Teachers’ Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. These regulations apply -to teachers in schools ‘and other

educational establishments, including colleges: ‘Membership is automa’nc for. teachers and Iecturers at L

ellgibie Institutions, Teachers and lecturers are able to opt out of the TPS,

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and members contribute on a 'pay as you go ‘basis -these contrlbutlons a]ong BRI

with those made by employers, are credited to the Exchequer under arrangements governed by the above Act,
Retirement and other pension benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parljiament. Lo S
Under the definitions set outin FRS 102 (28.11}, the TPS is a mu!t: emp!oyer pensmn plan The Co!iege is unable o
to identify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities of the plan, -~ -

Accordingly, the College has taken advantage of the exemption .in FRS 102" and has accounted for its
contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined-contribution plan. The College has set out above the .

|nformatlon avaliable onthe pEan and the rmpircations for the College in terms ofthe antmpated contrlbuhon o

rates. : : : :

Thevaluation-of the TPS is carried out in line with regulatrons made under the Pubhc Service Pensnon Act 2013,
Valuations credit the teachers’ pension account with a real rate of return assummg funds are lnvested in,
notional mvestments that produce that reaE rate of return. : : :

@
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Notes to the Accounts (continued) -

23 Defined benefit obligations_(continued}

i

The latestactuarial review of the TPS was carried outas at31 March 2012, The valuation report was
published by the Depa rtment for Educatlon (the Depa rtment) on 9 June 2014 The key results of the o
valuation are: : . _
- New employer contnbutlon rates were set at 16 48% of pensmnable pay (mcludmg admm:stratlon i
feesofoog%)' . . Sl : . -
~total schemeliabilities (pens;ons current!y in payment and the estimated cost of future beneflts) for
service to the effective date of £191,500. million, and notional assets (estimated future contributions:
together with the notional investments held -at the valuatmn date} of £176 600 mllllon gwmg a -’
notional pastservice deficit of £14,900 mliElon : : '
-an employercost cap of 10.9% of pensionable pay : .

" - the assumed real'rate of returnis 3.0% In excess of prices and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate of -
real earnings growth is assumed to be 2.75%. The assumed nominal rate of return is 5.06%.
The new employer contrlbutlon rate for the TPS was implemented -in September .2015. ‘The next B
valuation of the TPS is currently underway based .on April 2016 data, whereupon the empioyer SR
contribution rate is expected to be reassessed and will be payable atsome poant in 2019. e
A full copy of the valuation report and support:ng documentatlon can be found on the Teachers’ - .
Pension Scheme website. : IR : g

. The pensmn costs pald to TPS in the year amounted to £4 029, 472 (2017 £4 070 688)

Local Government Pension Scheme . :

The LGPS is a funded defined-benefit plan, with the assets held in separate funds 'a dminstered by West o
Midlands-Pension Fund . The total contribution made for the year ended 31 July 2017 was £2,125,516,

of which employer’s contributions totalled £1,423,165 "and employees’ contributions ‘totalled _
£702,351. The agreed contribution rates for future years are 17.3% for employers and ra nge from 5. 5% -
to 7.5% cent for employees dependlng on saEary : : SR ;-

Principa!Actuaria_!Assumptions o

- The foliow:ng |nformat|0n is based upon a full actuarial valuatmn of the fund at 31 March 2016 AN
updated to 31 July 2018 bya quahfled mdependentactuary S o RS
' ";Ats_ll_uiv __At31.lu1y_"

2018 2017
Rate of increase in salaries '_3 SRR o L S 385% - 4.20%
Future pensions increases e T Ll 235% 0 2.70%
Discountrate for scheme liabilities .~ - . o 265% - L 2.70%
Infiation assumption (CPI) .=+ i 0 S 2.38% 1.80%. .

Commutation of pensions tolumpsums . . o0 80% . 50%

4
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23  Defined benefit obligations (cont_inued)

Local Government Pension Scheme {Continued) . -

Thecur_fentmortali_tyassumpti,_ohsinc_ludesufficientallowa_ncefor
D ' o S A3 uly

Retiring today . -
“Males
Females -

Retiring in 20 years .. . '_ L
Males - AR TR
Females .

' Birmingham Metropolitan College -
Members’ Report and Financial Statements
: . For the year ended 31" July 2018 - -

7 At3tluly

2018
o oyears

years

2190 a2 o

2440

2390,

2410 o
2660

2670

The College's -share of the assets in the plan and the expected rates of return were:

Long-term  '-
©rateof

©return.
. expected at

Co3tlyzoas. oo

Equities L '
Bonds - Government
' Bonds - Other: =
Property -
Cash
Other : .
Total market value of assets .

T.00% .

"4.00%

Weighted average expected lang'. o S
term rate of return AR

Actual return on plan assets

C63.00%

U A00%
8.00%

. 14.00%

.. Fair Value at |
:31 Juiy 2018 -

(4280)

: ':Longnt_e_r_m

85,321
6,288 - .
3,237
17,095
3,278
= 12,204
N 87,423

. Fair.\_lalu_é at _
rateof - . . 31July2017 -
return oo

C3tuyz017

S E000
U 63.00% . TU49,750
7.00% .o 5,753
4.00% 03,029
. L 05,749
S5.00% - 73,911
13.00% - 010,445

Lol 78 637

700%

a3

The amount included in the balance sheet in respect of the defined benefit pension plan is as f'ollpv'_vs.: o

Fair value of plan assets

Present value of plan liabilities _
Present value of unfunded liabilities
Net pensions liability (Note 17)

49

2017
" £'000

2018
- £000

78,637
(115,688)
_ (58}
(372,107)

87,423
o (117,771)

' - (52)
- (30400)
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Not_es:t.o _th.e Accou_ri__ts ((_:orit__in_u__ed) ) "Z

' 23 Defined be.nef_i_t _pbi_igati'c;n.r., (con_ti.n._ﬁ_e;_j.)__-_'.:" '

L;Jca_i _qu_e_.rﬁhe_t}'_c. Pe_r;_si.o_r.). Scheme (Contmued) ';. .

).\mo.unts: recognised Iin..the Statement _c.:.f_ Comprehenswe Income mrespect {.J.f._f_l’.l_e _ﬁian :é_\ré .a.s._f'o!l_t..).v_\_rs_;.;_.”‘ :

2018 0 2017
CE'000 -0 U£'000 -

Amoun_tsinr_.l_udedins_taffc_:_o_sts.'- ' S S s

Currentservicecost ..~ T RIS IEEE S 3_,969_ 2,969 0

N NetSettlementCosts : PR '_':'3:" ; AR o S
CTotal ULt T ey T 069

Amo_unts int_:lud_ed in investment income o

Netinterestincome . . : 985 - 1,164 B

"985 .: 116
Amount_s'recqgnisé_d in O_ther Comprehensiv_e I'n_c_o'm'e_ .3

Return on Fund assets inecess ofmterest R IR R LR 2,000 9,784 .

Other actuarial gains on assets ST g 07 o
Changeinfmanmalassumptlons SRR BB R TRy 1.3 REURET R (713 ) IR F

Change in demographic assumptlons I e 3099
Expenence gainon defmed beneﬁtobhgatlon TN ST EEEE PP DETIL TPV RPN 1 6 ¥ SRR

Amount recognised i_n_O@_Iher Com_preh_ensive lnc_om_e L 9,261 0 12,356 _ "'

S

Movement in net defined benefit liability during the year ~ R e
R BRI Bt DR 2018 2017

Deficitin SchemeatlAugust S 37,107) L (47,740)

Movementinyear: . - "t T e
Staff Costs ' oL e L a8y o (2,969)

Employer contributions - 023 U iga3gl

Net interest on the defined liability - L Lol (985) | - C(1,164) -

~ Administration expenses . L 3By s .

Actuarial gain R e g6l 12,356 :
Net defmed beneflt hablhtyat 31 July Lo (30,400) - (37,07)
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23 Defined benefit obligations (continued)
Local Government Pension Scheme {Continued) .

Asset a_ncl L]ahility'Reconci_liation R T ETR
e 2018 . .. 2017

. o £000 . £'000 . -
Changes in the p_resem_: value of_def_ined benefit ob_liga_tions [ R
Defined benefit obllgatlons at start of perlod _ R SN 115,744 . 110,563
CurrentSerwcecost T SRR e 3,969 2,969 .
Interestcost ~° o T R .':.j' 3,265 2,752
Contributions by Scheme participants .~ E T R i o : 763 - .. 703
Experience gains and losses on defined benefit obilgations S S ({s,717)
Liabilities assumed on settlements -~ .0 S S0 3,854 0 Sl
Changes in financial assumptions - -~ 0 LU (7,261) 16,222
Estimated benefits paid - TR ol L 2,507y 0 (1,744)
Unfunded pension payments - - - R AR LR 4y - (4)
Defined benefit obligations at end of period ST :_ EETR 117,823 . 115,744
Recondiliation ofAssets_ e . C
Fair value of plan assets at start ofpenod o R 78637 62 822
Intereston planassets . <. U0 ot . 2980 0 1,588
Return onplanassets ' .~ = " Lo R 2,000 -."-9784
Other actuarial gains = -+ 0l i e 3,077
Employer contribijtioné S '.: A R TR T '2,923 ' _:- 2,439
Contributions by Scheme participants - =~ . . 763 703
Estimated benefits patd -~ . o S (2,511) e {1,748)
Administration Expenses - . Lo sy o (28)
Settlement prices received ST Do 3,366
Fair vaiue of plan assets at end ofperlod Sl 87823 0 78,637

Deficit contributions

In Aprit 2013 the College has entere.d into an agreement with the LGPS to_ make additional -
contributions, these totalled £1,165,000 which are in addition to normai fundlng Ievels unt:l the next
full valuation at whlch point the SItuatlon will be rewewed again -

On 26 October, the High Courtha n__ded down a judgm_ent involving th_e Lloyds Banking Group's defined .
benefit pension schemes. The judgment concl uded the schemes should be amended to equalise .
pension benefits for men and women in relation to guaranteed minimum pension benefits, “GMP”. The,
Government will need to consider this outcome in conjunction with the Government’s recent
consultation on GMP indexation in public sector schemes before cqncluding on any changes required
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24 Related party transactions

Due to the nature of the College’s operations and the composition of the board of governors being drawn from
local public. and private sector organisations, it is inevitable that transactions will take place with
organisations in which a member of the board of governors may have an interest. All transactions involving
such organisations are conducted at arms Iength and in accordance w1th the Colleges fnnancral regulatrons
and normal procurement procedures : : -

The total expenses pald to oron behalf of the Governors dUl’l ng the year was £1 200;3 governors (2017 £399; 3

governors). This represents travel and subsistence expenses and other out of pocket expenses mcurred in -

attending Governor meetings and charity events in their official ca pacity. S .
No Governor has received any remuneratson or. walved payments from the College or |ts subs:dlarres durmg the o
year (2017 None) ' : : : S s : -

Transaction with the ESFA_ an_d OFS are detailed _in r_:otes 2, 12, 13.and 14 -

Estates, Finance (including Payroll), Governance and IT were recharged to Harborne Academy durmg the year .
this totalled £150 418 (2017 £168 604) : . :

25 Amounts disbursed as agent

_Lear__ner support funds _' E PR I _
R I ' 2018 0T 02017

Fundmgbodygrants—lS 18 Bursary S SRR o 2,160 . _2;079_ SRR
OtherFundlngbodygrants F S S P I O S 972
e T P 2,404 03,052
Disbursed tostudents ...~ S TR R e (1,2(_51), .. ' ':'_'.(1,6_17)
Administrationcosts ~+ 0o T e e T L ed) s (7))
Balance u_hsbent__as a't'a’_llui_v,»_incl{:dedin cr_ec_li_tors : E ) " - : 1,079 0 1,357 ;'.

Funding body grants are available solely for students. In the majority of instances, the College only acts as a
paying agent. In these circumstances, the grants and related d|sbursements are therefore excluded from the
Statement of Comprehenswelr’:come L SRR -



